
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

      Phone: 907- 543-2047 

         Fax: 907-543-3781 

Regular City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, March 27, 2018 

    6:30 P.M. 

Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



Agenda posted on March 21, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.  

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing April 10, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
March 27, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net  

Mark Springer 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
msprigner@cityofbethel.net  

Naim Shabani 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
nshabani@cityofbethel.net 

Thor Williams 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
twilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Mitchell Forbes  
Council Member  
Term Expires 2019 
mforbes@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 
City Manager 
543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 
543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net  

Patty Burley 
City Attorney 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *3-13-2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

a) Health Fitness Monthly Report

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing Of Budget Ordinance 17-28(j): Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2018
Budget-Change To Water And Sewer Fund- Moving Alcohol Tax Revenue To
Community Action Grant Fund (City Manager Williams)

b) AM 18-20: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A Contract
Amendment To The Professional Services Agreement With Carmen Jackson CPA
Originally Executed On January 19, 2016 (City Manager Williams)

c) IM 18-03: Report To City Council, Pursuant To BMC 4.20.180 That The City Utilized An
Emergency Procurement For A Lift Station Facility Failure (City Manager Williams)

X. NEW BUSINESS

a) *Introduction Of Ordinance 18-07: Amending Section 13.16.150(A) Of The Bethel 
Municipal Code, Solid Waste Collection, To Amend The Commercial Dumpster Rates 
And Adding A Six-Yard Dumpster (City Manager Williams) 

b) *Resolution 18-07: Authorizing The City Council’s Involvement In Association Of 
Village Council Presidents  Yupiit Piciryarait Museum Advisory Committee And 
Appointment Of A Council Member To Yupiit Piciryarait Museum Advisory Committee 
(Mayor Robb) 

i. Appointment of Council Member to Yupiit Piciryarait Museum
Advisory Committee

c) AM 18-23: Authorize And Approve City Administration To Sign A Construction
Contract With Company X In The Amount Of $1,389,850 To Repair The Existing Sewer
Lagoon Jetty (City Manager Williams)

p.5

p.22

p.39

p.49

p.72

p.74

p.76

p.79

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:nshabani@cityofbethel.net
mailto:twilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:mforbes@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


Agenda posted on March 21, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office.  

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing April 10, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
March 27, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

d) AM 18-24: Authorize And Approve City Administration To Issue Checks To Four
Quarter 1 Community Action Grant Awardees Based On The Community Action Grant
Committee’s Work On Scoring Applications And Deciding How To Divvy Up The Funds
Available (City Manager Williams)

e) AM 18-25: Directing The City Manager To Invite The Alaska Commercial Company To
A Meeting With Administration To Discuss The Concerns Raised In Council’s
Resolution 18-03 And Alaska Commercial Company’s Plan To Address Those Concerns
(Mayor Robb)

f) AM 18-26: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A Lease
Agreement With Community Leasing Partners For A 15 Year Lease To Own
Agreement To Purchase The Hughes Ladder Truck Approved During The March 13,
2018 City Council Meeting (City Manager Williams)

g) AM- 18-27: Direct Administration To Prepare And Submit The FY 2019 Grant
Application In The Amount Of $323,081 To The Alaska Department Of Health And
Social Services To Fund The Bethel Community Service Patrol Program (City Manager
Williams)

h) *IM 18-04: Monthly Financial Report to Council (City Manager Williams) 

i) *IM 18-05: Capital Improvement Project List For FY 2019 Budget Consideration (City 
Manager Williams) 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT
XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

p.80

p.81

p.87

p.103
p.112

p.143



Approval of the Meeting Minutes 



1 

City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

March 13, 2018 

Regular Meeting 
March 13, 2018 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on March 13, 2018 at 6:30 p.m., 
in the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD

Michelle Dewitt, Bethel Community Services Foundation- Addressed the Council with 
concerns related to the letter from Administration distributed to the non-profit 
community, which reflected interpretations of the new sales tax code which were 
different from those that were discussed in public meetings when the sales tax code 
was being developed. Stated there will be considerations made by the attorney to 
modify the current code to address the concerns identified.  

Eileen Arnold, Tundra Women’s Coalition- Reiterated the statements provided by 
Michelle Dewitt and further stated that the earnings from the fund raisers aren’t going 

  City Council Meeting 
 City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson Council Member Leif Albertson 

Council Member Mitchell Forbes  Council Member Thor Williams 

Members Absent: 

Council Member Naim Shabani 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

City Attorney Patty Burley 

5



2 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

into the pockets of owners or into bonuses for the employees and the money raised is 
going back into direct services.  
 
Buck Bukowski, VFW Representative- Outlined the processes which the VFW uses to 
remit taxes to the City, which has become complicated since the monthly remittance 
requirements. Feels that it has become a very cumbersome process. Stated opposition 
to the City’s intent to start taxing the revenues collected on the proceeds raised from 
fundraisers.    
 
Mike Walsh, VP of Public Policy for the Foraker Group- Provided statements of support 
to the communities’ non-profits in their quest to prevent unnecessary taxation on the 
non-profit sector. A goal of the Foraker Group is to establish a fair and equitable sales 
tax structure.   
 
David E. Trantham Jr.- Stated opposition to the Council’s spending of the tax payers’ 
money. Suggested that businesses are leaving Bethel because of the City’s Tax 
structure. Explained that the City’s qualified audit is going to cost the tax payers 
money.  
 
Mary Nanuwak- Stated that she doesn’t feel as though the members of the Public 
Safety and Transportation Commission, of which she is a member do not treat her 
nicely. Complained that last year when she was backed into at the VFW, she was not 
able to get help from the Police Department.  
 
 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda.  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New Business Item J, IM 18-03.  

Moved by: Williams 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New Business Item B, Resolution 18-05.  

Moved by: Springer 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New Business Item A, Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28 (j). 

6



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

Moved by: Robb 

 
Removal from 

Consent: New Business Item C, Resolution 18-06 

Moved by: Williams 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES 

 
Item A – 2-27-2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
 

Public Safety and Transportation Commission  
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
Port Commission   
A meeting has not been held since the last City Council Meeting.  
 
Planning Commission   
Nothing to report.  
 
Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee   
Michelle Dewitt- Thanked John Sargent for acting as recorder. There were three 
people that spoke in opposition to the Kasayuli park development. There will be a 
community forum about community parks next week. At the next committee meeting, 
the committee is going to consider concepts for the park development. The 
Committee is also concerned about the annual transfer from the pool account to the 
City’s general fund; specifically, how that transfer lacks a processes for approving 
those transactions. The Committee established a scope of work and budget and 
presented a recommendation for the Council to contract parks and recreation 
services. The committee is also asking that the Council direct administration to draft a 
RFP for Owl Park completion.   
 
Finance Committee   
A meeting has not been held since the last city council meeting.  
 
Energy Committee   
A meeting has not been held due to a lack of a quorum.   
 
Public Works Committee   
A meeting has not been held due to a lack of a quorum.   
 

7



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Item A – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 18-03: Amending BMC Section 5.20.050(F) To 
Increase Maximum Taxi Cab Rates Charged By Cabs And 5.20.160 A. Increasing The 
Fees Paid By Cab Companies. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Jared Karr, Vice Chair of the Public Safety and Transpiration Commission- Wanted to 
clarify that the Commission has not had a chance to review the changes to the 
ordinance. Stated that the Commission, when they considered the pricing of the 
senior discount, adjusted the rate based off the new rate. The increase proposed is 
far below the cost of living increase of 20% over the last 11 years.   
 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-03 was made at the February 27, Regular Meeting. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

In favor:  Springer   Williams   Forbes   Albertson   

Opposed:  Robb   Watson   

 
 
Item B – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 18-04: Amending Section 4.16.160(p) Of The 
Bethel Municipal Code, Sales Tax Exemptions For Real Estate Purchases. 

 Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
 No one present to be heard. 
 Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-04. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Does not carry by a vote of 3-3  

In favor:  Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams  Robb  Watson 

 

Item C – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 18-05: Authorizing The Disposal Of Property 

Pursuant To BMC 4.08.030(B) Lease Agreement Between The City Of Bethel As 
Landlord And The Alaska Court System Tenant Of 17,045 Square Feet Of Office Space 
Within The Nora Guinn Justice Center, Court House Located At 204 Chief Eddie 
Hoffman Highway. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 

8



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-05. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Williams  Forbes 

Opposed:  Albertson     

 
 
Item D – Public Hearing Of Ordinance 18-06: Amending Chapter 1 Of The Bethel 
Municipal Code, General Provisions. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
 

David E. Trantham Jr.- Stated concerns with the increase of the fines to $400, as 
there are many people who are not able to pay these fines. Additionally asked the 
Council if they are going to be doing selective enforcement.  
 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-06. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

Subsidiary Motion: Take a ten-minute break.  

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Williams 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Item A – Introduction Of Budget Ordinance 17-28(j): Amending The Adopted Annual 
FY 2018 Budget-Change To Water And Sewer Fund- Moving Alcohol Tax Revenue To 
Community Action Grant Fund. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 17-28(j). 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 

9



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
 
 

Primary 
Amendment: 

Amend Revenues to strike 10-40-480 and insert 10-10200 and to amend Water and 
Sewer Fund to insert decreases to 51-10-100 in the amount of $9,350.  

Moved by: Albertson 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Item B – Resolution 18-05: Authorizing The City’s Participation In The State Of 
Alaska’s Public Employees’s Deferred Compensation Plan. 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 18-05. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Albertson 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Albertson   Watson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: Suspend the rules to hear from PERS Representative.  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Lisa Templeton, Public Employees Retirement and Benefits; Kendra Kaska, Empower 
Retirement; and Keith Henthorn, City’s Human Resources Manager addressed the City 
Council.     
 

Item C – Resolution 18-06: Authorizing The Administration To Enter Into A Lease 
Purchase Of A New Ladder Truck For The City Of Bethel Fire Department. 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 18-06. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

10



7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

 
 
 

Subsidiary Motion: Suspend the rules to hear from the Fire Chief.  

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Albertson  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 
Item D – AM 18-17: Appointment Of Brian M. Henry To The Finance Committee For 
A Term Of Three Years. 

Passed on the consent Agenda. 
 

Item E – AM 18-18: Authorizing The City Attorney To Travel To Nome For The 
Alcohol Beverage Control Board Meeting Of April 3, 2018. 

     Passed on the consent Agenda. 
 

Item F – AM 18-19: Direct Administration To Sign A Village Safe Water Program 
Agreement In The Amount Of $2,071,473 To Fund Additional 2018 Dredging Of The 
Sewer Lagoon. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-19. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item G – AM 18-20: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A 
Contract Amendment To The Professional Services Agreement With Carmen Jackson 
CPA Originally Executed On January 19, 2016. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-20. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Postponed  

 
Subsidiary Motion: Postpone 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Williams  

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

11



8 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

Opposed:  0 

 

Main Motion: 

Motion to Amend Something Previously Adopted, Introduction of Ordinance 17-28 

(j).  

Moved by: Williams 

Seconded by: Watson 
Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 3-3  

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Williams   

Opposed:  Albertson   Forbes   Springer   

 
 
Item H – AM 18-21: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A 
Contract With Hughes Fire Equipment/Pierce For The Purchase Of A Ladder Truck For 
The Fire Department. 

 

Main Motion: Approve AM 18-21. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item I – AM 18-22: Direct Administration To Appoint And Identify One Staff Member 
To Act As The Primary Contact In The City For The 4th Of July Festivities. 
 
Council Member Williams stepped away from the meeting at 9:32 p.m. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-22. 

Moved by: Forbes 
Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson    Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Council Member Williams returned to the meeting at 9:35 p.m. 
 

Item J– IM 18-03: City Invokes BMC 4.20.180 Emergency Procurements Section To Handle 
Lift Station Failure. 
 

Passed on the consent Agenda. 
 

Item K – Personal Leave Request For The City Clerk March 16, April 13th and 16th And July 

19 – August 3. 

12



9 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

 

Passed on the consent Agenda. 
 

X. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 

XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XII. CLERK’S REPORT 
 

XIII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

Mayor Richard Robb –  
Looking forward to another Camai Festival. Encouraged that everyone travelled safely. 
Wished hunters the best of luck in their hunting.  
 
Vice-Mayor Fred Watson –  
No comment.  
 
Council Member Leif Albertson – 
Reminded everyone that, although the roads are in bad condition, pedestrians still 
have the right of way.  
 
Council Member Mark Springer –  
Hoped to see some of the higher snow berms get knocked down. Noted that Steven 
Hawking passed away recently.  
 
Council Member Thor Williams–  
Reminded everyone that there is free style wrestling tournament. 
 
Council Member Mitchell Forbes– 
Welcomed everyone coming into town. Also encouraged people to celebrate Camai 
responsibly. Parks and Recreation will hold another public meeting for Kasayuli park 
development.  
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Main Motion: Adjournment. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson  Albertson     Springer   Williams   Forbes 

13



10 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 13, 2018 

Opposed:  0 

 
 

 
 
Council adjourned at 10:11 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

14



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 1 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 7, 2018 

City of Bethel, Alaska  

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 
March 7th, 2018 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A regular meeting of the Public Safety and Transportation Commission was held on March 7, 

2018 in the Bethel City Hall Council Chambers. 

  

This meeting was called to order at 6:32 pm. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:   Eileen Henrikson Chair 

   Jared Karr Vice Chair 

   Naim Shabani Council Rep. 

   Mary Weiss 

   Joan Dewey 

   Monroe Tyler 

   Mary Nanuwak Alternate   

 

Absent:  Julene Webber 

   William Howell II Fire Chief 

 

Ex-Officio Present: Burke Waldron Chief of Police 

   Jesslyn McGowan Recorder 

  

 

III.  PEOPLE TO BE HEARD 

 

No one to be heard 

 

IV.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED: Karr Motion to move New Business right after Approval of 

Minutes SECONDED: Dewey 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOVED: Dewey Motion to approve the minutes from the regular 

meeting of February 7, 2018 SECONDED: Weiss 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

16



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 2 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 7, 2018 

VI.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

A. Taxi Cameras  

Council Rep. Shabani gave the commission a review of this discussion on what he 

believes would fix the taxi camera situations that the cabs are having.  

 

MOVED: Karr Motion to send a recommend to Council strike out 

BMC Code 5.30.100 Section F.2 SECONDED: Weiss 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor.  

 

 

B. BMC Codes 

Chief Waldron talked about the BMC codes and how they are outdated to today’s taxi 

industry. Recommended to put together a commission to go through the BMC codes and 

find changes to make to clean up and organize the codes.  

 

MOVED: Karr Motion to create a committee to meet to review the 

Chapter 5 BMC Codes and recommend changes to the 

commission  
SECONDED: Dewey 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

MOVED: Karr Motion to amend wording in last motion and change it 

to two or less commission members rather than a 

whole committee 
SECONDED: Dewey 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

 

VII. NEW BUSINESS  

 

A.  Tundra Ridge Re-Alignment 

City Manager Pete Williams gave an update on what DOWL and DOT was wanting to do 

regarding the new road out to Tundra Ridge. He provided a handout showing the options 

of the roads. He stated nothing was set in stone yet and told everyone how they can go 

online to make public comments on which road they think would be best suited for 

Bethel. He also wanted to be put on the next agenda to give another update on this 

subject.  

 

B. Transportation Planning 

City Manager Pete Williams gave an update on the roads regarding Ridgecrest and also in 

front of the hospital. He provided handouts that are included in the packet and talked 

about the options they want to do with Ridgecrest and the possible three way stops. He 

hasn’t heard of any new plans regarding the road in front of the hospital since Fall of 

2016.  

17



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 3 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  March 7, 2018 

VIII. CHIEF’s COMMENTS  

Chief Waldron – See Report in Commission Packet 

 

Fire Chief Howell – See Report in Commission Packet 

 

IX. TRANSPORTATION INSPECTOR’S REPORT 

See Report in Commission Packet  

 

X. COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE’s COMMENTS 

Council Rep Shabani updated the commission on three items from the council 

meeting that he thinks they should be aware of. The first item was congratulating the 

Chief of Police on his now permanent position with the police department. The 

second item was the courthouse will remain in its current building for the next two 

years and is no longer a worry about if they might lose the building or not. The last 

item was regarding the ordinance the commission passed to the city council. The 

council has changed some things on it and tabled the rest of it for the next council 

meeting. 

 

XI. COMMISSION MEMBER’s COMMENTS  

Jared Karr- Updated the commission about the City Council meeting he went to and 

spoke on behalf of the commission regarding the increase on taxi rates. He informed 

the commission on what the council did with the ordinance and when they’ll be 

talking about it again in a future council meeting. 

Joan Dewey- Asked to add to the next agenda, an update with the Chiefs regarding 

the formal request for Phase II with GCI 

Mary Weiss- No comment 

Monroe Tyler- No Comment 

Mary Nanuwak- Wanted clarification as to what she can and cannot do as an 

“alternate” member of the commission. Also asked Council Rep. Shabani questions 

she had regarding taxis. 

Eileen Henrikson- No comment 

 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

MOVED: Weiss Motion to adjourn. 

SECONDED: Karr 

VOTE ON MAIN 

MOTION 

All in favor. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:44 pm. 

 

APPROVED THIS _______  DAY OF_______________________, 2018.    

   

  

    

_________________________    ________________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder     Eileen Henrikson, Chair 

18



 

 

Planning Commission                               City of Bethel, Alaska 
                                           03-08-2018 

  

City of Bethel, Alaska 

Planning Commission 
March 8, 2018 Regular  Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  

A regular meeting of the Planning Commission was held on March 08, 2018 at the 
City of Bethel, Council Chambers in Bethel, Alaska. Chair Kathy Hanson called the 
meeting to order at 6:31 PM. 

II. ROLL CALL:  

Compromising a quorum of the Commission, the following members were present 
for roll call: Kathy Hanson, Lorin Bradbury, Alex Wasierski, and Shadi Rabi. 

     Excused Absence: Scott Campbell 

Unexcused Absence: Thor Williams, John Guinn, and Elizabeth Williams 
Also present: City Planner, Betsy Jumper, Recorder, Pauline Boratko, ONC 
Representative, Calvin Cockroft, Rodney P. Kinney Associates Representative, Clark 
Kinney, and Solstice Alaska Consulting Representative, Robin Reich. 

  
III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD:  No one wished to be heard 
IV. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

 
V. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA: 

MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to approve the agenda. 

SECONDED: Alex Wasierski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous  

 
VI. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 

MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to approve the February 8, 2018 meeting 
minutes 
 

SECONDED: Alex Wasierski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

 
VII. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Special Use Permit- The City of Bethel Planning 
Office received a request for a public hearing for the placement and construction 
for a tall tower for the Bethel Wind Project.  This area is underdeveloped land 
that is west of Old BIA Road, about 0.3 miles southwest of the BIA 
Administrative Site and approximately 1.2 miles west of the Bethel Airport. Land 
Owner: Bethel Native Corporation, P.O. Box 719, Bethel, Alaska. 99559. Contact: 
Ana Hoffman, 543-2124. Applicant: Alaska Village Electric Cooperative, 4831 
Eagle Street, Anchorage, Alaska. 99503 Contact: Forrest Button 561-1818 

MOVED: Shadi Rabi Motion to open public hearing 
 SECONDED: Lorin Bradbury 

19



 

 

Planning Commission                               City of Bethel, Alaska 
                                           03-08-2018 

  

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

City planner gave an overview, Commissioners asked Robin Reich and City Planner 
questions. With No further questions or comments Chair Hanson closes public hearing. 
MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to  approve Special Use Permit for the 

placement and construction for a tall tower for the 
Bethel Wind Project 

SECONDED: 
Alex Wasierski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

A. PUBLIC HEARING: City of Bethel Planning Office received the filing of a 
preliminary plat from Rodney P. Kinney Association that creates Ciullkulek 
Subdivision, creating Block 1, Lots 1-9; Block 2, Lots 1-6; Block 3, Lots 1-17; 
Block 4, Lots 1-6; and Tract A, in the Bethel Recording District. Land Owner: 
Orutsararmiut Native Council, 117 P.O. Box 927, Bethel, AK.  99559 phone 
907-543-2608 Contact: Clark E. Kinney, Rodney P. Kinney Associates, 16515 
Centerfield Drive, Eagle River, Alaska 99577, (907) 694-2332 

MOVED: Shadi Rabi Motion to open public hearing 
 SECONDED: Lorin Bradbury 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

City Planner gave her presentation, Commissioners asked Calvin Cockroft and City 
Planner questions. With no further questions or comments, Chair Hanson closes public 
hearing. 
MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to approve preliminary plat with the 

conditions of the City Planner’s, including a 
subdivision agreement 

SECONDED: 
Alex Wasierski 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

 
VII. PLANNER’S REPORT: Betsy Jumper gave her monthly report.                                        

 
VIII. COMMISSIONER’S COMMENTS: 
 L. Bradbury- no comment.   
 A. Wasierski- no comment. 
 S. Rabi- no comment. 
 K. Hanson- I got us back in the commission training.  
IX. ADJOURNMENT:       

MOVED: Lorin Bradbury Motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 SECONDED: Shadi Rabi 

VOTE ON 
MOTION 

Unanimous 

With no further business the meeting adjourned at 7:20 pm 
APPROVED THIS _____ DAY OF __________, 2018  
   
 
________________________________   _____________________________ 
ATTEST: Pauline Boratko, Recorder    Kathy Hanson, Chair 

20



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 1 of 16 

Events and Schedule 

Easter: 4/1/18  

 Facility Open 2pm-9pm 

 Easter Eggstravaganza with Egg Hunts in the Pool 5-8pm 
Memorial Day: 5/28/18 Facility Open 2pm-9pm 
Free Lifeguard Training: May 29th – June 2nd, 12-6:30pm  
 

Staffing 

Operational Staff:   

 Currently looking for a Full Time Maintenance Technician 

 Currently looking for Full Time Operations Staff able work as Lifeguard, Front Desk Staff or Facility Attendant 

interchangeably 

Programming Staff: We are looking for programming staff to fill the below roles: 

 Swim Instructors 

 Masters Swim Coach: Swim coach is not required to be American Red Cross Certified, but must have 

experience with coaching competitive swimming. 

 Fitness Instructors and Certified Personal Trainers 

 Instructors for any activity, craft or music patrons might be interested in learning.  

Summer Staff: We are looking for summer staff to work with our Youth Sport Camp Program.  

Anyone interested in working with us can call 543-0390 or visit ykfitness.org for information. 

 

Programming 

Fitness and Aquatic Classes: Winter classes started Jan 8th and run through March 4th.  The Spring Session for classes 

will run March 12th – May 6th, with registration opening on Feb 24th.  

We offered Sport Club during Spring Break March 5-9 with full day and half-day options available for the week or for 

single days.  

February 24th we held the Community Swim Meet.  The Swim team raised over $600 and had a combined attendance 

of participants and spectators of over 50 people.  

Rentals:  February rentals included 7 parties.   

Off Site activities:  Open gym basketball and Ultimate Frisbee resumed Feb 4th and will run through the end of the 

school year, skipping 3/18 for Camai.  The open gym schedule is: 

• 1-3pm Women’ Open Gym Basketball 

• 3-5pm Men’s Open Gym Basketball 

• 5:30-8pm Ultimate Frisbee 

   

22



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 2 of 16 

Facility Maintenance 

Water Usage:  

 

*Note: Facility opened in November of 2014 (FY15) 

Warranty Maintenance:  We continue to work with Bethel Services on small repairs and corrections but large 

concerns have been addressed. 

 

Routine Maintenance:  Our Maintenance Technician left in early February, all essential routine maintenance such as 

cleaning pool filters and boiler upkeep was completed, but other routine maintenance is pending filling of the 

Maintenance Position.  

 

Corrective Maintenance: 

 Men’s Locker Room – all showers have been fixed with the assistance of City of Bethel Property 

Maintenance. 

 

Maintenance needed: 

 Women’s Locker Room – swim suit spinner is currently not working, parts have been ordered. 

 One of the main drains at the bottom of the pool has been damaged.  It is not currently a hazard, but will 

need to be replaced.  We are reviewing replacement options. 

 

Previously reported maintenance still pending: 

 Elliptical #1 is not running smoothly and may need replacement bearings, we are looking into options for 

repair/replacement. 

 Lamps for UV system are nearing the end of their use life and will need to be replaced.  Due to the delicate and 

highly technical nature of the work it may be necessary to bring in a contractor.  We are looking at options.   

 Airlocks – we are finding that both the pool and spa regularly develop airlocks when being backwashed.  While 

the airlocks are easy to release, we are trying to determine why they are occurring to avoid them.  Update:  We 

have found an air leak in pool filter tank #2 that seems to be the cause of the air leak for the pool.  We are 

23



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 3 of 16 

looking at best options for correcting the leak.  Update 3/18/18 we have located a broken o-ring that was the 

source of some of the air in the system, the ring has been replaced with most of the issue being solved, but we 

continue to look at the seal on pump #2 and options for replacement.  

 Overhead fans in pool area need maintenance. Working with City Facilities Department to develop a plan for safe 

access to trouble shoot the fans.  Jan 2018: City of Bethel is looking into purchasing a lift that will allow access to 

the fans as well as other maintenance areas in the pool. Update 3/18/18 a scissor lift has been identified and 

purchasing is being reviewed. 

 While moving cardio machines we found that the treadmills are wearing groves into the linoleum in some places 

and causing the linoleum to bubble in others.  Need to look into alternative flooring options for under these 

pieces.  Jan 2018: no further damage has been found, but we continue to monitor and review flooring 

replacement options.  

 Experiencing difficulties with BIAMP Interface modules for playing music in the cardio/weight room and studio.  

We are reviewing system to determine whether they can be fixed or will need to be replaced.  

 

 

  

24



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 4 of 16 

Revenue 

FY18 Revenue 

 
 July Membership Revenue includes payment for LKSD FY18 Contract. 

 

Revenue Comparisons FY17-FY18 

 

Revenue for December 2016 (FY17) included the Annual membership payments for the YKHC contract.  The 

FY18 contract has been renewed but funds have not yet been received. 

 

 

  

Code Facility Revenue Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Total FY18 Budgeted%attained

414 Memberships $94,430 $9,948 $17,239 $29,334 $17,032 $9,462 $8,715 $30,791 $216,952 $372,000 58.32%

430 Pro Shop $3,283 $3,246 $3,426 $5,195 $3,231 $3,172 $2,643 $4,315 $28,511 $39,675 71.86%

435 Concessions $4,078 $4,685 $5,635 $7,286 $5,834 $5,643 $5,367 $5,321 $43,850 $49,200 89.13%

460 Entry Fees $6,162 $7,629 $5,955 $6,151 $14,683 $5,749 $9,736 $5,925 $61,991 $78,480 78.99%

463 Facility Rental $661 $801 $542 $1,434 $987 $1,189 $1,258 $1,100 $7,973 $12,750 62.53%

465 Program Fees $2,741 $3,046 $7,053 $5,730 $5,352 $1,469 $6,194 $2,801 $34,386 $90,500 38.00%

Facility Revenue Total $111,356 $29,355 $39,850 $55,131 $47,120 $26,685 $33,914 $50,253 $393,663 $642,605 61.26%

Monthly Revenue Totals July August September October November December January February March April May June

FY17 $31,433 $26,142 $24,867 $43,503 $27,134 $57,131 $26,567 $37,829 $38,636 $25,144 $28,177 $33,913

FY18 $111,356 $29,355 $39,850 $55,131 $47,120 $26,685 $33,914 $50,253

Change $79,923 $3,213 $14,983 $11,628 $19,986 ($30,446) $7,346 $12,424

25



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 5 of 16 

FY18 Expenses 

 
*Wages are paid every 2 weeks.  Most months include 2 pay periods, September includes 3.  During September the 

facility schedule also shifted to a 7 day per week schedule adding an additional operational day per week of wages. 

  

Comparison of Monthly Expenses 

Primary influencer on the 

increase in expenses starting in 

September is the additional 

wages paid out to staff at the 

move to a 7 day per week 

schedule.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Expenses Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Total Budgeted % used

Salary Wages $10,000 $10,110 $20,989 $13,382 $11,062 $14,108 $14,108 $14,108 $107,866 $233,050 46.28%

Hourly Wages $17,300 $18,171 $29,147 $20,984 $23,778 $23,239 $22,871 $21,890 $177,380 $331,500 53.51%

Benefits $5,527 $5,957 $11,198 $8,187 $8,677 $9,286 $9,312 $8,975 $67,120 $117,310 57.22%

520 Housing $3,000 $3,000 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $24,540 $37,080 66.18%

545 Travel/Training $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,304 $1,304 $5,731 22.75%

561 Supplies $2,520 $6,925 $10,929 $4,807 $9,966 $2,458 $6,302 $5,472 $49,380 $95,696 51.60%

580 Boiler $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $187 $0 $202 $389 $5,250 7.41%

646 Contractors $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $93,336 $144,200 64.73%

661 Vehicle Maintenance/Repair $0 $0 $0 $38 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38 $750 5.06%

663 Janitorial Supplies/Services $219 $49 $134 $3,020 $574 $191 $125 $1,582 $5,894 $20,400 28.89%

668 Software Licenses $682 $308 $423 $581 $491 $245 $371 $406 $3,508 $6,869 51.07%

683 Minor Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,500 0.00%

684 Donations and Awards $90 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $90 $500 18.00%

721 Insurance $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $1,225 $9,800 $15,515 63.16%

724 Dues/Subscriptions $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $1,355 $1,965 68.93%

727 Advertising $203 $168 $0 $0 $236 $269 $284 $0 $1,161 $10,000 11.61%

733 Postage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500 0.00%

736 Bank Charges $627 $699 $990 $1,640 $1,038 $686 $1,020 $1,181 $7,881 $14,060 56.05%

790 Allowance for Special Events $0 $0 $0 $294 $0 $0 $0 $0 $294 $800 36.77%

799 Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,058 0.00%

TOTAL $53,231 $58,448 $89,960 $69,086 $71,974 $66,821 $70,546 $71,272 $551,337 $1,056,735 52.17%

Monthly Expenses July August September October November December January February

FY17 $39,145 $70,114 $75,717 $58,716 $62,335 $61,668 $54,949 $72,965

FY18 $53,231 $58,448 $89,960 $69,086 $71,974 $65,596 $70,546 $71,272

Change $14,086 ($11,666) $14,242 $10,369 $9,638 $3,927 $15,597 ($1,694)

26



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 6 of 16 

Facility Utilization 

Facility Check-In: Facility Check-In numbers represent the total number of patrons who visited the facility and are 

based on a compilation of the number of members who checked-in, the number of daily passes sold and the number 

of participants in programs, activities, rentals and special events.  These numbers represent facility visits, not 

individuals as most individuals visit the facility multiple times over the course of the month.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Area Usage: Count of the number of individuals in each area at the top and bottom of each hour.  Showing trends 

and patterns of area usage, these numbers are not an accurate reporting of the overall number of patrons using the 

facility as patrons who remain in any area for more than 30 minutes are counted more than once. The below charts 

show average number of users for each area, by day of the week, per 30 minute period and are used from 

programming and operational hours planning.    

Facility Check-In Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Total

Member Checkins 1,983 2,347 2,737 2983 2,917 2,639 3,103 2,653 21,362

Daily Admissions 1,258 1,432 1,706 1790 925 1,388 1,607 1,714 11,820

Rentals 25 62 105 50 119 215 95 120 791

Fitness Programming 48 68 249 220 285 152 199 210 1,431

Aquatics Programming 20 30 98 96 105 55 125 167 696

Youth Programs 14 34 41 0 0 4 10 0 103

Monthly Totals 3,334 3,939 4,895 5,139 4,351 4,449 5,129 4,864 36,203

Facility Check-In July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

FY17 3,108 3,596 3,579 3,820 3,594 3,378 3,355 4,465

FY18 3,334 3,939 4,895 5,139 4,351 4,449 5,129 4,864

Difference 226 343 1,316 1,319 757 1,071 1,774 399

27



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 7 of 16 

Combined Facility Totals 

 

  

28



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 8 of 16 

 
 

  

29



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 9 of 16 

 
 

   

30



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 10 of 16 

 

 

  

31



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 11 of 16 

 

  

32



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 12 of 16 

 

  

33



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 13 of 16 

February 2018 Monthly Facility Averages by day of the week 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total: Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Total: Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 3.75 4.75 4.5 4.5 6.25 5:30am

6:00am 7.75 8.75 7 7 9.25 6:00am

6:30am 9 13.75 14.75 12.5 8.5 6:30am

7:00am 7 12.25 14 11.5 7.25 7:00am

7:30am 3.25 6 10.25 5.5 4.75 7:30am

8:00am 2.75 1.75 3.75 3 2.5 8:00am

8:30am 4 2 3.5 3.25 2.5 8:30am

9:00am 5.5 5.25 4.5 7 2.75 9:00am

9:30am 6 8.75 4.25 11 3.75 9:30am

10:00am 11.75 10.25 10.5 7.5 5.75 10:00am 5 2.5

10:30am 11 11.75 11.25 6 6.5 10:30am 13.75 10

11:00am 10.25 7.25 8.75 5 11.75 11:00am 20.25 13.5

11:30am 2.75 4.25 3.75 3 10.75 11:30am 24.5 8.25

12:00pm 2.5 4 7 3.5 11 12:00pm 25.25 11.75

12:30pm 7.25 4.5 2.5 3.5 10.5 12:30pm 20.75 13.25

1:00pm 4.25 5 11.5 3.75 3.75 1:00pm 16.25 14

1:30pm 10 3.5 30 12.75 8.75 1:30pm 16 18.5

2:00pm 14 12.75 26 14.25 9.75 2:00pm 20.25 22

2:30pm 20.25 13.25 15.75 14.75 5.75 2:30pm 17.75 25.75

3:00pm 14.5 14 10.75 21 6.25 3:00pm 19.25 34.5

3:30pm 14.75 14.25 7.5 26.5 4.5 3:30pm 19.25 34.5

4:00pm 5.25 5.5 9.25 12 6.75 4:00pm 20 30

4:30pm 8.5 7 10 12 3.75 4:30pm 32.5 31.25

5:00pm 23.75 17.5 16.25 20.75 2 5:00pm 36.5 26.75

5:30pm 30.75 23.25 25.75 25.75 2.25 5:30pm 32.75 19.25

6:00pm 35.25 25.75 33.5 27.25 5 6:00pm 32 23.25

6:30pm 35.5 28.75 43.25 22 10.5 6:30pm 28.5 21

7:00pm 44 29 44 17.25 17.5 7:00pm 33 20.25

7:30pm 43.5 26 39.25 27.25 28.25 7:30pm 30.5 27.25

8:00pm 30.5 19.25 14.5 26.5 14 8:00pm 18.25 22.25

8:30pm 10 5.5 4.75 5.25 0.75 8:30pm 3.5 4.75

34



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 14 of 16 

February 2018 Monthly Area Averages 

 

 

 

 

Pool Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Pool Saturdays Sundays Spa Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Spa Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 1.25 0.5 0.75 0.75 1.25 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am

6:00am 1 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.5 6:00am 6:00am 0 0 0.25 0.25 0 6:00am

6:30am 0.75 3.5 4.5 3.5 1 6:30am 6:30am 0.5 0.75 0.5 0 0.25 6:30am

7:00am 1.75 4 7.5 4.25 1 7:00am 7:00am 1.25 1 0.25 1 1 7:00am

7:30am 2.25 1 6.5 1.5 2 7:30am 7:30am 0 2.25 1.25 1.5 0.75 7:30am

8:00am 1 0.75 1.75 0.5 1.25 8:00am 8:00am 1 0.25 0.75 0.75 0.5 8:00am

8:30am 0.75 0.25 1.5 0.75 1 8:30am 8:30am 0.25 0.5 0.75 0.25 0.25 8:30am

9:00am 0.5 0.5 1.75 0.75 0 9:00am 9:00am 0.5 0 0.5 0.5 0.5 9:00am

9:30am 0 0.75 1.75 1.75 0.5 9:30am 9:30am 0.25 0.25 0.25 1.75 0.25 9:30am

10:00am 7.5 0.75 6.25 1.25 1 10:00am 1 0.75 10:00am 0.25 1.25 0.75 2.5 0.5 10:00am 0 1.25

10:30am 8.5 3 6.75 3.25 2.25 10:30am 4.5 2.25 10:30am 0.25 0.75 0.75 1 0.75 10:30am 0.5 1

11:00am 7.75 1.25 5.5 3.25 2.25 11:00am 8.5 3.5 11:00am 0.5 0.75 0.75 0.25 1.75 11:00am 1 1.5

11:30am 0.25 0.5 2.75 1 1.5 11:30am 9.5 2.25 11:30am 0.5 0.25 0.5 0.25 0.75 11:30am 0.25 1.5

12:00pm 0.25 0 6.25 1 1.25 12:00pm 8.75 3.5 12:00pm 0 0.75 0 0.25 1 12:00pm 1.25 0.25

12:30pm 2.5 1.5 1.25 0.75 1.25 12:30pm 6.5 6 12:30pm 0.25 1 0.25 0.25 1 12:30pm 0.5 0.75

1:00pm 1 1 10.25 0.5 0.5 1:00pm 5.75 6.75 1:00pm 0.25 0.75 0.75 0.5 0 1:00pm 0.25 1.25

1:30pm 1 0.25 20 0 0.25 1:30pm 5.25 11.5 1:30pm 0 0 0.75 0 0 1:30pm 0.5 1

2:00pm 1 0.25 15.5 1 0.5 2:00pm 7.5 16 2:00pm 0.75 0.25 1.5 0.25 0.5 2:00pm 1 1.25

2:30pm 5.5 0 3.75 0.75 2 2:30pm 7.25 19.25 2:30pm 0.25 0.5 2.25 0.25 0.75 2:30pm 0.75 1.75

3:00pm 2.5 1 1.5 4 2 3:00pm 5.5 19.25 3:00pm 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.75 1 3:00pm 2.25 1.75

3:30pm 1.5 4.5 1.75 9.5 1.75 3:30pm 6.75 21.5 3:30pm 0.5 0 1 0.75 0.75 3:30pm 0.5 1

4:00pm 1 2.25 5 8.75 3.75 4:00pm 6.75 17.5 4:00pm 0.25 0.75 0.25 0.25 1.5 4:00pm 0 0.75

4:30pm 3 3.25 5.5 6.75 1.5 4:30pm 16.5 17.75 4:30pm 0.25 1.5 0.75 0.25 1 4:30pm 2.25 1.25

5:00pm 12.75 9.25 10 13 0.75 5:00pm 24 13.5 5:00pm 0.75 2.5 1.25 1.75 0.5 5:00pm 3 2.25

5:30pm 18 16.25 14 14 1.5 5:30pm 23.75 13.5 5:30pm 0.75 0.25 1 1.75 0 5:30pm 2.5 0.75

6:00pm 21.75 15 19.25 12 3.5 6:00pm 22 14 6:00pm 3 1.25 3.5 5 0.25 6:00pm 3 2.75

6:30pm 21.25 15.5 24.25 8.5 7.5 6:30pm 18 12 6:30pm 1.75 1 5.25 2.5 1.5 6:30pm 1.75 3.5

7:00pm 23.25 12.25 24 5.75 8.75 7:00pm 19.75 11.75 7:00pm 8.5 1.75 4 0.75 3 7:00pm 3 3.25

7:30pm 28.5 11.25 19.75 12 16.25 7:30pm 17.5 15.5 7:30pm 3.5 1.75 2.5 2 4 7:30pm 2.25 4.75

8:00pm 19.25 8 3 12.75 6.5 8:00pm 8.5 11 8:00pm 2.75 1.75 2.25 1.5 3.25 8:00pm 1.75 5

8:30pm 4.5 0 1.25 0 0 8:30pm 0 1.25 8:30pm 0.5 0 0 8:30pm 0 0

35



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 15 of 16 

  

Fitness Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Fitness Saturdays Sundays Studio Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Studio Saturdays Sundays Bikes Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Bikes Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 2.5 4.25 3.5 3.75 4.75 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0.25 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0.25 0 0 5:30am

6:00am 5.75 6.75 5 5 7.5 6:00am 6:00am 0.25 0.5 0.25 0.25 0 6:00am 6:00am 0.75 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 6:00am

6:30am 6.75 8.75 8.25 8.25 6.25 6:30am 6:30am 0 0.5 0.75 0.5 0.25 6:30am 6:30am 1 0.25 0.75 0.25 0.75 6:30am

7:00am 3 5.25 3.75 5 3.75 7:00am 7:00am 0 1.75 1.5 1 1 7:00am 7:00am 1 0.25 1 0.25 0.5 7:00am

7:30am 1 2.25 2.5 2.5 2 7:30am 7:30am 0 0 0 0 0 7:30am 7:30am 0 0.5 0 0 0 7:30am

8:00am 0.75 0.75 1 1.75 0.75 8:00am 8:00am 0 0 0 0 0 8:00am 8:00am 0 0 0.25 0 0 8:00am

8:30am 2.5 1.25 1.25 2.25 1.25 8:30am 8:30am 0.25 0 0 0 0 8:30am 8:30am 0.25 0 0 0 0 8:30am

9:00am 4.25 4.75 1.75 5.5 2.25 9:00am 9:00am 0.25 0 0.25 0 0 9:00am 9:00am 0 0 0.25 0.25 0 9:00am

9:30am 5.25 7.5 2.25 6.75 3 9:30am 9:30am 0.5 0 0 0.5 0 9:30am 9:30am 0 0.25 0 0.25 0 9:30am

10:00am 3.75 8.25 3.5 3.75 4 10:00am 3.75 0.25 10:00am 0.25 0 0 0 0.25 10:00am 0 0.25 10:00am 0 0 0 0 0 10:00am 0.25 0

10:30am 1.75 7.75 3.25 1.75 3.25 10:30am 6 4.25 10:30am 0.5 0 0.5 0 0.25 10:30am 2.25 1.5 10:30am 0 0.25 0 0 0 10:30am 0.5 1

11:00am 1.75 5.25 2.25 1.5 3.5 11:00am 5.5 6.25 11:00am 0.25 0 0.25 0 4.25 11:00am 5 2 11:00am 0 0 0 0 0 11:00am 0.25 0.25

11:30am 1.75 3.25 0.5 1.5 2.5 11:30am 4.75 2.75 11:30am 0.25 0.25 0 0.25 6 11:30am 5.25 0 11:30am 0 0 0 0 0 11:30am 4.75 1.75

12:00pm 1.75 3.25 0.5 1.5 2.75 12:00pm 4.5 4.75 12:00pm 0.5 0 0.25 0.75 6 12:00pm 6 2.25 12:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 12:00pm 4.75 1

12:30pm 4 2 1 2 2.25 12:30pm 4.75 4.25 12:30pm 0.5 0 0 0.5 6 12:30pm 6 1 12:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 12:30pm 3 1.25

1:00pm 1.25 1 0.5 1.5 1.75 1:00pm 4.75 4.75 1:00pm 1.75 2.25 0 1.25 1.5 1:00pm 4.5 0.75 1:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 1:00pm 1 0.5

1:30pm 1.25 0.5 0.75 3.75 2.5 1:30pm 5.75 4.5 1:30pm 7.75 2.75 8.5 9 6 1:30pm 4.5 0.75 1:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 1:30pm 0 0.75

2:00pm 1.75 3.25 1.25 2 2.75 2:00pm 7.5 4.25 2:00pm 10.5 9 7.75 11 6 2:00pm 4.25 0 2:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 2:00pm 0 0.5

2:30pm 3 1.75 1.75 3 2.75 2:30pm 6.25 4.5 2:30pm 11.5 11 8 10.75 0.25 2:30pm 2.75 0 2:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 2:30pm 0.75 0.25

3:00pm 3 1.75 1 5 3.25 3:00pm 6.25 3 3:00pm 8.5 11 8 11.25 0 3:00pm 5.25 10 3:00pm 0.25 0 0 0 0 3:00pm 0 0.5

3:30pm 2.75 1.25 1.5 4.5 2 3:30pm 6 5 3:30pm 10 8.5 3.25 11.25 0 3:30pm 6 6.25 3:30pm 0 0 0 0.5 0 3:30pm 0 0.75

4:00pm 4 2.5 3.25 2.25 1.5 4:00pm 6 5.25 4:00pm 0 0 0.5 0.5 0 4:00pm 6.5 5.75 4:00pm 0 0 0.25 0.25 0 4:00pm 0.75 0.75

4:30pm 3 2.25 3 4.25 1.25 4:30pm 7.75 5.75 4:30pm 2.25 0 0.25 0.75 0 4:30pm 5.75 6.25 4:30pm 0 0 0.5 0 0 4:30pm 0.25 0.25

5:00pm 4.75 3.75 3.5 5 0.75 5:00pm 4.25 4.5 5:00pm 5.5 1.75 1.5 0.25 0 5:00pm 4.75 6 5:00pm 0 0.25 0 0.75 0 5:00pm 0.5 0.5

5:30pm 7.5 5.25 6 6 0.75 5:30pm 4 2.5 5:30pm 4.25 1.25 4.25 3.5 0 5:30pm 2 2.25 5:30pm 0.25 0.25 0.5 0.5 0 5:30pm 0.5 0.25

6:00pm 7.25 7.75 6 7 0.5 6:00pm 4.75 3.5 6:00pm 3.25 1.75 3 3.25 0.75 6:00pm 2 3 6:00pm 0 0 1.75 0 0 6:00pm 0.25 0

6:30pm 9.25 9.75 6.25 7.75 0.5 6:30pm 8 2.75 6:30pm 3.25 2.5 7 2.5 0.75 6:30pm 0.75 2.5 6:30pm 0 0 0.5 0.75 0.25 6:30pm 0 0.25

7:00pm 10.25 11.25 12 9.25 4.5 7:00pm 7.75 4.25 7:00pm 2 3.5 3.25 1.25 1.25 7:00pm 1.5 1 7:00pm 0 0.25 0.75 0.25 0 7:00pm 1 0

7:30pm 8 8.5 9 10.75 6.5 7:30pm 8.25 6.5 7:30pm 1.75 3.75 6.75 2 1.25 7:30pm 2 0.25 7:30pm 1.75 0.75 1.25 0.5 0.25 7:30pm 0.5 0.25

8:00pm 7.75 5.75 7 9.75 3 8:00pm 7 4.5 8:00pm 0.5 3.5 2 2.25 1.25 8:00pm 1 1.75 8:00pm 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0 8:00pm 0 0

8:30pm 5 3.25 3.25 3.25 0.75 8:30pm 3.25 3.25 8:30pm 0 2.25 0.25 1.75 0 8:30pm 0 0.25 8:30pm 0 0 0 0.25 0 8:30pm 0.25 0

36



YKFC Monthly Report February 2018 03/20/2018 

  
 

Page 16 of 16 

Concessions Monthly Comprisons FY17 and FY18 

 

 
 

 

 

Pro Shop Monthly Comprisons FY17 and FY18 

 

 

Concessions 

Sales Totals
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

FY17 $2,384.89 $3,157.11 $3,092.41 $3,769.41 $3,426.47 $3,185.55 $3,648.41 $4,247.30 $4,669.61 $4,009.62 $3,958.30 $4,024.27 $43,573.35

FY18 $3,954.28 $4,650.93 $5,633.56 $7,320.72 $5,834.03 $5,642.99 $5,366.89 $5,321.23 $43,724.63

Value Change $1,569.39 $1,493.82 $2,541.15 $3,551.31 $2,407.56 $2,457.44 $1,718.48 $1,073.93 $151.28

Pro Shop 

Sales Totals
July August September October November December January February March April May June Total

FY17 $3,913.00 $2,850.50 $2,092.54 $3,365.62 $2,231.18 $2,490.62 $2,239.62 $2,777.95 $4,032.94 $3,483.89 $3,253.72 $3,382.17 $36,113.75

FY18 $3,289.74 $3,247.54 $3,365.77 $5,194.60 $3,231.28 $3,172.30 $2,643.08 $4,315.11 $28,459.42

Value Change -$623.26 $397.04 $1,273.23 $1,828.98 $1,000.10 $681.68 $403.46 $1,537.16 -$7,654.33

37



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



The alcohol tax increase has generated $26,556.31 in revenue between December and January. 17-28J 
movest he money from the revenue account to the Community Action Grant account as required by  Ord. 
17-36.  

Ordinance 17-36. 

and $26,556

and $26,556

DOT 
Permits

10-72-760 (Community Actin Grant Fund) 
and 10-40- 480 (alcohol tax revenue account) 

Budget Ordinance 17-28 (j)

39



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: March 27, 2018

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Increases

1072760 Community Services Community Action Grant (12.17& 1.18 3% Alcohol Tax) 26,556                 

Total Increases 26,556 

Decreases

(26,556)

Total Decreases (26,556)

TOTAL Total 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 26,556 

Total Decreases 0

Cumulative Increase (Decrease ) to Fund Balance 26,556 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Change to General Fund Revenues 0 

Change to General Fund Appropriations 26,556

Cumulative Increase (Decrease ) to Fund Balance (26,556)

WATER AND SEWER FUND
Increases

51-81-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES - H WATER - DOT PERMITS 3,850                   

51-85-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES - H SEWER - DOT PERMITS 5,500                   

Total Increases 9,350 

Decreases

51-10100 Cash (9,350)

Total Decreases (9,350)

TOTAL Net Change to WATER AND SEWER Fund Appropriations 0 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF MARCH 2018 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

Peter Williams, City Manager

March 13, 2018

ORDINANCE # 17-28(j)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

GENERAL FUND

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for Fiscal 

Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

1040480      10-

10200

Alcohol Tax  Cash

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28(j) 

1 of 1

40



Suggested amendments to Ordinance 17-28 (j) from Administration.  
 

As provided in Code, Administration does not need to do a budget modification for items less 

than $5,000 if administration is able to move the funds from within the department to cover 

the expenditure. Administration will do an internal line item transfer to account for the Permit 

fees for 51-81-669 in the amount of $3,850.  

AMENDMENT #1 Strike the reference to line item increases for 51-81-669 in the amount of 

$3,850.  

Council asked the Administration try to find unexpended funds already budgeted in 2018 that 

could cover the costs associated with the Budget Modification transfers in 51-85. As a result 

Administration requests Council approve an amendment to the budget modification to reflect 

the $5,500 coming from within 51-85 (51-85-563 heating fuel) as opposed to the cash reserves.   

AMENDMENT #2 insert a line item decrease for 51-85-563 in the amount of $5,500.  

AMENDMENT #3: Strike the reference to line item decreases for 51-10-100, in the amount of 

$9,350.  

The changes are reflected below in italics.  

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  Increases   

1072760 
Community Services Community Action Grant (12.17& 1.18 3% Alcohol 
Tax) 

                
26,556  

      

  Total Increases 26,556  

  Decreases   

1040480      
10-10200 

Alcohol Tax  Cash (26,556) 

  

  Total Decreases (26,556) 

TOTAL Total 0  

 WATER AND SEWER FUND  
  Increases   

51-81-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES - H WATER - DOT PERMITS 
                  

3,850  

51-85-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES - H SEWER - DOT PERMITS 
                  

5,500  

  Total Increases 9,350  

  Decreases   

 51-85-563  Heating Fuel (5,500) 

51-10100 Cash (9,350) 

  Total Decreases (9,350) 

TOTAL Net Change to WATER AND SEWER Fund Appropriations 0  
 

41



42



43



44



Introduced by: Council Member Leif Albertson 
Date: June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action: Passed 

Vote: 5-2 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
Ordinance #17-36 

AN ORDINANCE SUBMITTING TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF 
BETHEL, A BALLOT PROPOSITION AMENDING THE BETHEL MUNICIPAL CODE 

TO INCREASE THE ALCOHOL BEVERAGE SALES TAX FROM 12°/o {TWELVE 
PERCENT) TO 15°/o {FIFTEETH PERCENT) AND TO DEDICATE a 20°/o OF THE 

REVENUE GENERATED FROM THE TAX TO HEALTH, PUBLIC SAFETY AND 
SOCIAL SERVICE USES RELATED TO ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES, AND TO 

PROVIDE FOR APPROVAL BY A MAJORITY OF QUALFIED VOTERS VOTING ON 
THE QUESTION 

Therefore be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that: 

SECTION 1. Pursuant to state law, a ballot proposition in substantially the following 
form and substance shall be submitted to the qualified voters of the City of Bethel at 
the next regular Municipal election to be held October 3, 2017: 

PROPOSmON N0.1 

Shall the City of Bethel increase the alcohol tax on the sales of alcoholic beverages in the 
City of Bethel to 15%? (Ordinance No. 17-36) 

Explanation: 

A "Yes" vote will increase the tax on alcohol sales from a rate of 12% to a rate of 15%. 

A "No" vote will maintain the tax on alcohol sales at a rate of 12%. 

SECTION 2 Amend the Bethel Municipal Code, Section 4.13.030 to read (new language 
is underlined old language is stricken): 

Section 4.16.030 Imposition - Rate. 

A. There is levied and shall be collected a sales tax on all sales transaction in the 
City unless specifically exempted under this chapter. The tax is six (6) percent of 
the selling price. 
B. The tax to be added to the sale price shall be twelve percent (12%) fifteen 
percent (15%) for alcohol. 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance #17-36 
1of2 

45



Introduced by: Council Member Leif Albertson 
Date: June 13, 2017 

Public Hearing: June 27, 2017 
Action: Passed 

Vote: 5-2 

C. The tax to be added to the sale price, shall be and twelve percent (12%) 
transient lodging. 

SECTION 3. For such period of time as the City of Bethel, Alaska, levies a tax as under 
Section 2 of this Ordinance at Section 4.16.030(8) of the Bethel Municipal Code at a 
rate of 15% or greater, 3 20% of the revenues collected from the sales of alcohol in 
each fiscal year shall be placed in a separate interest bearing account. The funds 
generated in the separate interest bearing account will be used to fund the Community 
Action Grant programs which shall focus on advancing the communities opportunities, 
sustainability and wellbeing with components that foster community wellness, direct 
impact to the community's vulnerable populations and/or civic engagement of Bethel 
residents and project beneficiaries. 

SECTION 4. The proposition contained in Section 1, the amendments outlined in Section 
2, and the designation of funds provided in Section 3 of this ordinance, shall become 
effective if, and only if, approved by a majority of the voters voting on the question. 

ATIEST: 

City of Bethel, Alaska Ordinance #17-36 
2 of 2 

46



47



48



1  

City of Bethel Action Memorandum 
 

 

Action Title:  Authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract amendment to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Carmen Jackson CPA originally executed on January 19, 2016/ 
 
Attachment(s):  Original Contract, Draft Amendment #4 
 
 

Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

City Attorney PB Required by BMC 4.20.410(G)  

 City Manager  
 

 

Amount of fiscal impact:  Account information: 

X No fiscal impact at this time.  

 
Summary Statement 
 

On January 19, 2016, the City of Bethel entered into a contract for Professional Services with 
the accounting firm of Carmen Jackson CPA, LLC.  Since then the contract has been amended 
three (3) times to reflect the growing needs of the City. 
 
The finance department continues to see staff changes and continues to work on cleaning up 
past audit issues.  To effectively handle the demands, the finance department requires the 
assistance of the trained personnel provided by Carmen Jackson CPA, LLC.   
 
The firm of Carmen Jackson CPA, LLC was secured via a properly executed RFP process.  The 
contract is effective until June 30, 2020. 
 
This amendment will allow for the continued utilization of the needed services.  If approved, the 
staff of Carmen Jackson CPA, LLC is anticipated to arrive in Bethel in late March to assist the 
City. 
 
City Council approval of the amendment is required pursuant to the Bethel Municipal Code.   
 
   
 
 
 

Action memorandum No. 18-20 
Date action introduced:  March 13, 2018 Introduced by: City Manager Peter Williams 

Date action taken:      Approved         Denied 

Confirmed by:  

49



1 

 

Amendment # 4 to Professional Services Contract 
For Accounting Services 

Between City of Bethel and Carmen Jackson, CPA LLC 
(Signed January 19, 2016) 

 
This Contract Amendment is made this    day of March, 2018 by and between the 
City of Bethel, a municipal corporation (hereinafter “City”) and Carmen Jackson CPA, LLC 
(hereinafter “Contractor”).   
 
Pursuant to section 15 of the Contract for Accounting Services entered into between the 
parties on January 16, 2016, the parties hereby mutually agree to modify the Contract as 
follows: 
 
Section 06, subsection D Compensation is amended to read: 
D. Total annual compensation shall not exceed Eighty-Five One Hundred Eighty 
Thousand ($85,000) ($180,000) Dollars without the express written authorization of the 
City. 
 
Section 07, subsection D Method and Time of Payment is amended to read: 
D.  It is expressly understood that in no event shall the total compensation due to the 
Accountant exceed EIGHTY-FIVE ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY ($85,000) ($180,000) 
DOLLARS unless this Agreement is modified, in writing and signed by both parties.   

 
All other terms of the original Professional Services Agreement dated January 12, 2016 
shall remain in full force and effect as though specifically incorporated herein.   
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Contract Amendment to be 
executed as of the date first written above. 
 
CITY OF BETHEL     CARMEN JACKSON CPA LLC 

 
 
 
              
Peter A. Williams     Carmen Jackson 
City Manager      Owner 

 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



1  

Suggested amendments to AM 18-20 
 
AM 18-20: Authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract amendment to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Carmen Jackson CPA Originally executed on January 19, 
2016.  
 
AMENDMENT (Additional Information) 
 
1. On January 23, 2018, the Bethel City Council voted down a requested budget modification 

of $107,517 for auditing and professional fees for the finance department (Ordinance 17-
28(f)).  At the time of the budget modification request, the monies had already been paid, 
thus the voting down of the Ordinance meant that the budget would reflect the negative 
value and memorialize the payment of the fees prior to obtaining the budget modification. 

 
Using the December 31, 2017 financials that were in the packet on February 27, 2018 (financials 
were in the January 9 meeting packet as well but they were only through the end of November): 
 

Account # Starting Balance Change Requested Notes 

10-53-641 $45,345.75 Addition of $50,805 Denied 

10-53-649 (-$78,882.90) Addition of $56,712 Denied 

10-53-501 $333,770.76 Reduction of $107,757  

Balances remained the same.  Bills for Carmen Jackson, CPA firm had already been paid at this 
time thus the balances reflect those payments and why one was so heavily over-expended. 
 
2. On February 27, 2018, the Bethel City Council approved a budget modification request via 

Ordinance 17-28(i).  That budget modification asked for a transfer in advance of monies 
being encumbered and spent as required by the Bethel Municipal Code.  That budget 
modification was approved.   
 
Using the December 31, 2017 financials as a demonstrative: 

Account # Starting 
Balance 

Change Requested Action New Balance 

10-53-501 $333,770.76 Decrease by 
$44,600 

Approved $289,170.76 

10-53-520 $3,047.11 Add $2,000 Approved $5,047.11 

10-53-545 (-$5,751.05) Add $16,000 Approved $10,248.95 

10-53-640 $15,000 Decrease by 
$15,000 

Approved $0.00 

10-53-648 $11,957.00 Decrease by 
$11,900 

Approved $57.00 

10-53-649 (-$78,882.90) Add $60,000 Approved (-$18,882.90) 

10-53-693 $6,500 Decrease by $6,500 Approved $0.00 

With the passage of the budget modification, the new balances became effective. 
 
3. The $60,000 approved in Ordinance 17-28(i) cannot be used to substitute for the funds 

70



2  

denied in Ordinance 17-28(f).  Administration does not have the authority or rights under 
Roberts Rules of Order to request any of the $107,517 that was denied.  To reinstate the 
$107,517, a Motion to Reconsider would have to be brought by one of the four councilmen 
who voted on the prevailing side (denial of the budget modification).  Unless that is done, 
the budget accurately represents the denial and the unratified over-expenditure.  As the 
approved $60,000 are spent, the negative balance in line 10-53-649 should continue to grow 
and will come closer to the negative figure which it should reflect per Ordinance 17-28(f).   

 
4. The remaining $289,170.76 in 10-53-501 (personnel) has been checked to ensure that it will 

suffice to cover salaries for the remainder of the fiscal year.  It is impossible to tell for sure but it 
appears that even if the Union contract is finally ratified and the raises are able to be processed, 
that there are sufficient funds.  While it is possible that by the end of the year the salary figures 
may be close due to an over-estimation of the Risk Manager’s position and subsequent transfer 
of funds to the Administration’s budget, it is unlikely given the fact that the Carmen Jackson, 
CPA contract is a time and materials budget that can be controlled and can be compared against 
the remaining expenses in the line item.   

 
5. It is important to City Council to note that the calculations above are based on the last figures in 

the packet.  They will not match the figures in this packet as since December employees have 
been paid and other expenses have been paid.  However, if the figures above are taken to the 
figures in the current packet, the results will be the same: the line for professional services will 
remain overdrawn to properly reflect the denial of the request for funds to cover the over-
expenditure.   

   
 
 
 

71



1 

CITY OF BETHEL AMENDED INFORMATION MEMERANDUM 

Information Memorandum No 18-03 
Date Introduced: March 13, 2018 Introduced by: Peter Williams, City Manager 

Amended Actions: 

Confirmed By: 

Title: Report to City Council, pursuant to BMC 4.20.180 that the City utilized an Emergency 
Procurement for a Lift Station Facility Failure.   

Attachments:  None 

Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Administration/Peter Williams 

Public Works/Bill Arnold 

Amount of Fiscal Impact: Account Information: 

No fiscal impact at this time 

x Funds in City Budget 51-86-669 

Funds not in City Budget 

Amended Summary Statement: 
In late January of this year, the Public Works crew noticed a glycol leak.  Because of ice and 
snow covering, the glycol leak was not immediately noticeable and took nearly a week to 
discover.  Once discovered, the leak took two days to repair.   

Due to the delay in discovering the leak, the main sewer main froze and the City Shop water 
line froze.  Priority was placed on the sewer main since it serviced the public. Despite significant 
manpower, the sewer main took two weeks to repair.   

Once the sewer main was repaired, the crew was redirected to the Public Works Shop.  Two 
days into the repairs at the Public Works Shop, a significant problem occurred at the main lift 
station (2/08/18).  This forced the crew to abandon repairs at the Public Works Shop and focus 
their resources solely on the lift station.  By 2/10/18, the crew thought the problem had been 
resolved: the lift station was operational.  However, on 2/12/18, the initial problem re-
occurred.  The subsequent check showed that the #2 pump was not turning on in auto.  The 
crew was forced to call an electrician. 

Normally the crew would have called Tec Pro, the contracted electrician.  However, after 
consultation, the Public Works Director and City Manager directed the crew to call a local 
electrician: Sea Lion Corporation.   

72



2 

The decision not to use the contracted electrician and to instead utilize a local electrician was 
made pursuant to BMC 4.20.180(C).  Had the City utilized the contracted electrician, the City 
would have been forced to wait several days or up to a week before the electrician could arrive 
to resolve the issue.  Because the lift station services the public, and because the equipment 
failure was not foreseen and all internal repairs had already been attempted and failed, it was 
felt that action needed to be done quickly to restore services to the public. 

Unfortunately the local electrician was unable to resolve the problem after spending nearly a 
full day on the issue.  When it became apparent that the problem may not be resolved locally, 
the City did contact the contracted electrician, Tec Pro, and asked them to come resolve the 
issue.  Tec Pro arrived a few days later and also spent nearly a full day on the issue.  They were 
able to get one of the pumps working which meant services were restored.  Unfortunately the 
second pump, the back-up pump, was unable to be restored.  Parts have been ordered from 
California to repair the second pump.  The parts have since arrived, and Tec Pro did return to fix 
the controls on the 2nd pump.  However, there remains an issue with the third pump which is a 
seal fail and we need to pull this third pump from the lift station and send it for assessment to 
see if it can be repaired.  If it is unable to be fixed, the cost to replace the motor will be 
approximately $58,000.   

Right now that lift station does work with 2 pumps.  The 3rd pump is a back-up pump and 
should be repaired to avoid issues in the future.   



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

73



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Date: March 27, 2018 

Public Hearing: April 10, 2018 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #18-07 
     

    

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #18-07 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 13.16.150(A) OF THE BETHEL 

MUNICIPAL CODE, SOLID WASTE COLLECTION, TO AMEND THE 
COMMERCIAL DUMPSTER RATES AND ADDDING A SIX-YARD DUMPSTER  

 
NOW, BE IT ORDAINED, the City Council amends the Bethel Municipal Code, Section 
13.16.150(A), Solid Waste Collection. 
 
SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified ordinance and shall become part of the 
Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment.  Bethel Municipal Code 13.16.150(A) is amended as 
followed, (old language is stricken, new language is underlined): 
 
13.16.150  Solid waste collection 
For the collection, removal and disposal of residential/nonresidential/commercial 
garbage, rubbish and waste materials within the city, the following charges shall be 
made: 

A. Residential/churches/nonresidential use of communal dumpsters and dumpster 

rentals/commercial scheduled rates: 

1. Residential and church service: 

Frequency of Service Rate 

Monthly flat rate $15.00 

2. Nonresidential service without dumpster: 

Frequency of Service Rate 

Monthly flat rate $67.00 

3. Commercial service Dumpster rentals and hauls: 

74



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 
Date: March 27, 2018 

Public Hearing: April 10, 2018 
Action:  

Vote:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #18-07 
     

    

Frequency of Service Rate 

Four-yard dumpster $59.00/haul   $64.00/haul 

Six-yard dumpster  $71.00/haul 

Eight-yard dumpster $74.00/haul   $79.00/haul 

Commercial monthly flat rate 

without dumpster 

$66.00  

 
SECTION 3.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon passage by 
the Bethel City Council. 
 
ENACTED THIS ____ DAY OF ________ 2018, BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR 
AND ___ OPPOSED.  
 
 
 

_______________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 
 
 
 

75



 
 Introduced by: Mayor Robb 

Date: March 27, 2018 
Action:  

Vote:  

 
 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Resolution #18-07 

     1 of 1  

    
 

CITY OF BETHEL 

Resolution # 18-07 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

COUNCIL’S INVOLVEMENT IN ASSOCIATION OF VILLAGE COUNCIL 

PRESIDENTS  YUPIIT PICIRYARAIT MUSEUM ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND 

APPOINTMENT OF A COUNCIL MEMBER TO YUPIIT PICIRYARAIT MUSEUM 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

WHEREAS, the Association of Village Council Presidents (AVCP) invited the City 
Council to join the Yupiit Piciryarait Museum Advisory Committee; 

 

WHEREAS, AVCP instituted a Museum Sustainability Initiative and as part of that 
initiative AVCP is seeking participation from organizations that believe a 
viable regional museum in the Yukon-Kuksokwim Delta is an essential 
element in maintaining a showcasing our vibrant Native culture;     

 

WHEREAS, one of the main responsibilities as a committee participant will be to 
attract and contribute funds to maintain a reasonable operating 
budget for the Yupiit Piciryarait Museum; 

 
 

WHEREAS, the goal is to have a sustainable, financially-secure regional repository 
in Bethel that will house and preserve items showcasing the cultural 
heritage of the Yukon Kuskokwim Delta Region;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Bethel authorizes the City 
Council’s involvement in the Association of Village Council Presidents Yupiit Piciryarait 
Museum Advisory Committee and authorizes the Appointment of a Council Member 
to the Yupiit Piciryarait Museum Advisory Committee.  
 
 
 

ENACTED THIS 27th DAY OF MARCH 2018 BY A VOTE OF _ IN FAVOR AND 
_ OPPOSED. 
 
 

_______________________________ 

Richard Robb, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

Lori Strickler, City Clerk 

 

76



77



78



18-23
March 27, 2018

79



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with 
respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of 
the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations. 

 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR FOR 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved. 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © 2013: 

 

National Society of Professional Engineers 

1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 

(703) 684-2882 

www.nspe.org 

 

American Council of Engineering Companies 

1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 

(202) 347-7474 

www.acec.org 

 

American Society of Civil Engineers 

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 

(800) 548-2723 

www.asce.org 

 

 

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed 
above.  The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC 
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE. 

 

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring 
organizations above. 

 

http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/
http://www.ejcdc.org/


EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 1 of 7 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between City of Bethel (“Owner”) and 

STG, Incorporated (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Work is generally described as follows: 

A. Installing a new sheetpile cofferdam outboard of the existing jetty. 

B. Trimming the top of the existing jetty sheet piles to install tie rods. 

C. Constructing a new earthen jetty access using geoweb membrane grids. 

D. Site grading around the jetty entrance. 

E. Installing new handrail and truck dump pipe connections on the jetty. 

F. Installing new area lighting on the jetty. 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as 
follows: Construct new access road and lagoon jetty with handrail and truck dump connections 
and new jetty lighting. 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The Project has been designed by CH2M HILL. 

3.02 The Owner has retained CH2M HILL (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s representative, assume all 
duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the 
Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

4.02 Contract Times: Dates 

A. The Work will be substantially completed on or before September 1, 2018, and completed 
and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions 
on or before October 1, 2018. 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 2 of 7 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed 
and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the 
delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty): 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $1,000 for each day that expires 
after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 
4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. 

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall 
neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as 
duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final 
payment, Contractor shall pay Owner $500 for each day that expires after such time 
until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final 
completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently. 

4.04 [Deleted] 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

A. For all Work other than Unit Price Work, a lump sum of:  $1,389,850. 

All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with 
Paragraph 13.02 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the 
General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in 
the General Conditions. 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 3 of 7 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 5th day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of 
Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price 
Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of 
Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not 
limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract. 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage); and 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with 
the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion of the entire construction to be provided under Contract 
Documents, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor 
to 98 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Owner pursuant to 
Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 100 percent of Engineer’s estimate of 
the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the punch list of items to be 
completed or corrected prior to final payment. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of 8 percent per annum. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and 
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 4 of 7 

such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs. 

E. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 
or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

F. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

G. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

H. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

I. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to 7, inclusive). 

2. Performance Bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

3. Payment Bond (pages 1 to 3, inclusive). 

4. General Conditions (pages 1 to 65, inclusive). 

5. Supplementary Conditions (pages 1 to 18, inclusive). 

6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

7. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of 6 sheets with 
each sheet bearing the following general title: Bethel Jetty Replacement  

8. Addenda (numbers 1 to 2, inclusive). 

9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages 1 to 4, inclusive). 

10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

d. Field Orders. 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 5 of 7 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto 
without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without 
limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited 
by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under 
any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue 
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 
Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid 
and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this 
Paragraph 10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 
Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 6 of 7 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 
affect the execution of the Contract. 

10.06 Other Provisions 

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are 
based on EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract, 
published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee®, and if Owner is the 
party that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly shown all 
modifications to the standard wording of such published document to the Contractor, 
through a process such as highlighting or “track changes” (redline/strikeout), or in the 
Supplementary Conditions. 

 



EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on April 1, 2018 (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

 

OWNER:  CITY OF BETHEL  CONTRACTOR:  STG, INC. 

   

By: Peter A. Williams  By: Brennan Walsh 

Title: City Manager  Title: President 

  
(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint 
venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title: City Clerk  Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

City of Bethel   

Attn: City Manager’s Office   

PO Box 1388   

Bethel AK 99559  License No.:  

   
(where applicable) 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of authority 
to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach evidence of 
authority to sign and resolution or other documents 
authorizing execution of this Agreement.) 

 NOTE TO USER:  Use in those states or other 
jurisdictions where applicable or required. 

 



18-24
March 27, 2018

80



1  

City of Bethel Action Memorandum 
 

 

Action Title:  Directing the City Manager to invite the Alaska Commercial Company to a meeting with 
Administration to discuss the concerns raised in Council’s Resolution 18-03 and Alaska Commercial 
Company’s plan to address those concerns. 
 
Attachment(s):  Resolution 18-03 and Resolution 18-01.  
 
 

Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

City Attorney   

 City Manager  
 

 

Amount of fiscal impact:  Account information: 

X No fiscal impact at this time.  

 
Summary Statement 
 
On February 26, the Alaska Commercial Company (AC) submitted a written request for the Council 
to meet with them in a work session to formulate ideas that proactively address concerns 
regarding alcohol in Bethel and the surrounding communities.  
 

The City Council recognizes the importance of collaborative efforts in addressing  concerns on the 
impact of alcohol to Bethel and the Region, which is why in January the Council established an 
Alcohol Task Force through Resolution 18-01. The goal of the Task Force, consisting of community 
and regional organizations, is to collaboratively address problematic alcohol use both locally and in 
the surrounding area with the goal of finding a workable long-term solution. The City recognizes the 
importance of Alaska Commercial Company’s participation in this Task Force and will ensure their 
representative is informed of the meeting times and locations once those are identified.  
 
Considering community/regional alcohol issues will be addressed collaboratively by the Task Force  
the Council in addition directs Administration to invite AC to a discussion about the issues identified 
in Resolution 18-03, A Resolution Protesting the Renewal of the AC Quickstop’s Package Store 
License.  The issues addressed by Council in Resolution 18-03 were specific to AC and if AC is willing, 
then Administration is to meet with AC to determine if reasonable mitigation efforts can be 
developed.  
 
   
 
 
 

Action memorandum No. 18-25 

Date action introduced:  March 27, 2018 Introduced by: Mayor Robb 

Date action taken:      Approved         Denied 

Confirmed by:  

81



82



83



84



85



86



18-26

87



 

~	1	~MuniStd	

 

MASTER EQUIPMENT LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
LESSEE:  <Legal Name of Lessee> 
   
This Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, including all exhibits and schedules hereto whether currently in existence 
or hereafter executed (the “Agreement”), dated as of <CommencementDate>, and entered into between Community First 
National Bank 215 S. Seth Child Rd, Manhattan, KS 66502 ("Lessor’), and <Legal Name of Lessee>, <Business Line 1>, 
<Business Line 2>, <Business City>, <Business State>  <Business Postal Code> a body corporate and politic duly organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of <State Alpha> ("Lessee"); 
 
RECITALS 
WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease from Lessor certain equipment described in the schedules to this Agreement, substantially in the form of Exhibit A 
hereto, that are executed from time to time by the parties hereto (such schedules are hereby incorporated herein and are hereinafter collectively referred 
to as the "Schedules", and the items of equipment leased to Lessee hereunder, together with all substitutions, proceeds, replacement parts, repairs, 
additions, attachments, accessories and replacements thereto, thereof or therefore, are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Equipment") subject to 
the terms and conditions of and for the purposes set forth in this Agreement. 
 
WHEREAS, the relationship between the parties shall be a continuing one and items of equipment may be added to or deleted from the Equipment from 
time to time by execution of additional Schedules by the parties hereto and as otherwise provided herein. 
 
WHEREAS, Lessee is authorized under the constitution and laws of the State to enter into this Agreement for the purposes set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE I. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF LESSEE 
Section 1.01.  Lessee represents, covenants and warrants, for the benefit of Lessor and its assignees, as follows: 

(a) Lessee is a public body, corporate and politic, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State. 
(b) Lessee will do or cause to be done all things necessary to preserve and keep in full force and affect its existence as a body corporate and politic.  

Lessee is a political subdivision of the State within the meaning of Section 103(a) of the Code or a constituted authority authorized to issue 
obligations on behalf of a state or local governmental unit within the meaning of the regulations promulgated pursuant to said Section of the Code. 

(c) Lessee has full power and authority under the Constitution and laws of the State to enter into this Agreement and the transactions contemplated 
hereby, and to perform all of its obligations hereunder. 

(d)   Lessee has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement by proper action by its governing body at a meeting duly called, 
regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite majority of the members thereof, or by other appropriate official approval, and all 
requirements have been met and procedures have occurred in order to ensure the enforceability of this Agreement.  

(e) Lessee has complied or will comply with such public bidding requirements as may be applicable to this Agreement and the acquisition by Lessee 
of the Equipment.   

(f)   During the Lease Term, the Equipment will be used by Lessee only for the purpose of performing one or more essential governmental or 
proprietary functions of Lessee consistent with the permissible scope of Lessee's authority and will not be used in a trade or business of any 
person or entity other than Lessee. 

(g)   During the Lease Term, Lessee will annually provide Lessor with current financial statements, budgets, proof of appropriation for the ensuing 
fiscal year and such other financial information relating to the ability of Lessee to continue this Agreement as may be reasonably requested by 
Lessor. 

(h)   The Equipment will have a useful life in the hands of Lessee that is substantially in excess of the Original Term and all Renewal Terms. 
(i)   The Equipment is, and during the Lease Term will remain personal property and when subjected to use by the Lessee, will not be or become 

fixtures. 
(j)   The Equipment is essential to the function of the Lessee and the services provided to its citizens, and will be used throughout the period that this 

Agreement is in force for the purpose of performing one or more governmental or proprietary functions consistent with the permissible scope of its 
authority. 

(k)   During the term of this Agreement, Lessee will not dispose of or sell any part of the Equipment. 
(l)  Lessee has not terminated a lease, rental agreement, installment purchase contract, or any other such agreement in the past five (5) years as a 

result of insufficient funds being appropriated for payments due under such an agreement. 
(m) This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Lessee enforceable in accordance with its terms, except to the extent limited 

by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws affecting creditors' rights generally. 
(n)  No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute, an Event of  Default exists at the 

date hereof. 
(o) Lessee has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted and appropriated sufficient funds for the current fiscal year to make the 

Rental Payments scheduled to come due during the current fiscal year and to meet its other obligations under this Agreement for the current 
fiscal year, and such funds have not been expended for other purposes. 

(p) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by any court, public board or body, pending or 
threatened against or affecting Lessee, nor to the best knowledge of Lessee is there any basis therefore, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling 
or finding would materially adversely affect the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any other document, agreement or certificate 
which is used or contemplated for use in the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or materially adversely affect the 
financial condition or properties of Lessee. 

(q) All authorizations, consents and approvals of governmental bodies or agencies required in connection with the execution and delivery by Lessee 
of this Agreement or in connection with the carrying out by Lessee of its obligations hereunder have been obtained. 

(r) The entering into and performance of this Agreement or any other document or agreement contemplated hereby to which Lessee is  or is to be a 
party will not violate any judgment, order, law or regulation applicable to Lessee or result in any breach of, or constitute a default under, or result 
in the creation of any lien, charge, security interest or other encumbrance on any assets of Lessee or the Equipment pursuant to any indenture, 
mortgage, deed of trust, bank loan or credit agreement or other instrument to which Lessee is a party or by which it or its assets may be bound, 
except as herein provided. 

 
ARTICLE II.  DEFINITIONS 
Section 2.01.  The following terms will have the meanings indicated below unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
"Agreement" means this Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, including the Schedules and any other schedule, exhibit or escrow agreement 
made a part hereof by the parties hereto, whether currently in existence or hereafter executed, as the same may be supplemented or amended from time 
to time in accordance with the terms hereof. 88



 

~	2	~MuniStd	

 

 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the United States Treasury Regulations in effect thereunder. 
"Commencement Date" means, with respect to any Schedule, the date when the Lease Term of this Agreement with respect to that Schedule and 
Lessee's obligation to pay rent under that Schedule commence, which date will be the earlier of (i) the date of the Agreement, or (ii) the date on which 
sufficient moneys to purchase the Equipment are deposited for that purpose with an Escrow Agent. 
"Equipment" means the property described in the Schedules and all replacements, substitutions, repairs, restorations, modifications, attachments, 
accessions, additions and improvements thereof or thereto.  Whenever reference is made in this Agreement to Equipment listed in a Schedule, that 
reference shall be deemed to include all replacements, repairs, restorations, modifications and improvements of or to that Equipment. 
"Event of Default" means, with respect to any Lease, an Event of Default described in Section 10.01. 
“Escrow Agreement” means, with respect to a given Schedule, an escrow agreement in form and substance satisfactory to Lessor, between Lessee, 
Lessor and an escrow agent relating to the acquisition fund created thereunder. 
"Lease"  means, at any time, (i) if none of Lessor’s interest in, to and under any Schedule has been assigned pursuant to Section 9.01, or if all of Lessor’s 
interest in, to and under this Agreement and all Schedules have been assigned to the same assignee without any reassignment, this Agreement, or (ii) if 
Lessor’s interest in, to and under any Schedule or Schedules has been assigned or reassigned pursuant to Section 9.01, all Schedules that have the same 
Lessor and this Agreement as it relates to those Schedules and the Equipment listed therein, which shall constitute a separate single lease relating to that 
Equipment. 
"Lease Term" means, with respect to any Lease, the Original Term and all Renewal Terms of that Lease. 
"Lessee" means the entity which is described in the first paragraph of this Agreement, its successors and assigns. 
"Lessor" means, with respect to each Schedule and the Lease of which that Schedule is a part, (i) if Lessor’s interest in, to and under that Schedule has 
not been assigned pursuant to Section 9.01, the entity described as such in the first paragraph of this Agreement or its successor, or (ii) if Lessor’s interest 
in, to and under that Schedule has been assigned pursuant to Section 9.01, the assignee thereof or its successor. 
"Net Proceeds" means the amount remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim or condemnation award after deducting all expenses 
(including attorneys' fees) incurred in the collection of such claim or award. 
"Original Term" means, with respect to any Lease, the period from the first Commencement Date for any Schedule under that Lease until the end of the 
fiscal year of Lessee in effect at that Commencement Date. 
"Purchase Option Price" means, with respect to the Equipment listed on any Schedule, the amount set forth in that Schedule as the Purchase Option Price 
for that Equipment.   
"Renewal Terms" means, with respect to any Lease, the automatic renewal terms of that Lease, as provided for in Article III of this Agreement, each 
having a duration of one year and a term co-extensive with the Lessee's fiscal year except the last of such automatic renewal terms which shall end on the 
due date of the last Rental Payment set forth in the Schedule. 
"Rental Payments" means the basic rental payments payable by Lessee pursuant to Section 4.02.  
“State” means the state in which Lessee is located. 
"Vendor" means the manufacturer of the Equipment as well as the agents or dealers of the manufacturer from whom Lessor purchased or is purchasing 
the Equipment. 
 

ARTICLE III. LEASE TERM 
Section 3.01.  Lease of Equipment.  Lessor hereby demises, leases and lets to Lessee, and Lessee rents, leases and hires from Lessor, the Equipment 
listed in each Schedule in accordance with this Agreement and that Schedule for the Lease Term for the Lease of which that Schedule is a part. The 
Lease Term for each Lease may be continued at the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term for an additional Renewal Term; provided, however, 
that at the end of the Original Term and at the end of each Renewal Term, Lessee shall be deemed to have continued that Lease for the next Renewal 
Term unless Lessee shall have terminated that Lease pursuant to Section 4.05 or Section 5.04.  The terms and conditions during any Renewal Term 
shall be the same as the terms and conditions during the Original Term, except that the Rental Payments shall be as provided in the Schedules.  Lessor 
hereby covenants to provide Lessee during the Lease Term with quiet use and enjoyment of the Equipment, and Lessee shall during the Lease Term 
peaceably and quietly have and hold and enjoy the Equipment, without suit, trouble or hindrance from Lessor, except as expressly set forth in this 
Agreement. 
Section 3.02.  Continuation of Lease Term.  Lessee currently intends, subject to Section 4.05, to continue the Lease Term for each Lease through the 
Original Term and all of the Renewal Terms and to pay the Rental Payments hereunder.  Lessee reasonably believes that legally available funds in an 
amount sufficient to make all Rental Payments during the Lease Term for each Lease can be obtained.  The responsible financial officer of Lessee shall do 
all things lawfully within his or her power to obtain and maintain funds from which the Rental Payments may be made, including making provision for the 
Rental Payments to the extent necessary in each proposed annual budget submitted for approval in accordance with applicable procedures of Lessee and to 
exhaust all available reviews and appeals in the event such portion of the budget is not approved.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision whether or 
not to budget or appropriate funds or to extend a Lease for any Renewal Term is solely within the discretion of the then current governing body of Lessee. 
Section 3.03.  Return of Equipment on Termination.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of any Schedule under any provision of this Agreement at a 
time when Lessee does not exercise its option to purchase the Equipment described in that Schedule under the provisions of this Agreement, Lessee shall 
deliver, at Lessee’s expense, the Equipment described in that Schedule to Lessor in the same condition as existed at the Commencement Date, ordinary 
wear and tear expected, packaged or otherwise prepared in a manner suitable by shipment by truck or rail common carrier at a location specified by 
Lessor. 
Section 3.04.  Conditions to Lessor's Performance under Schedules.  As a prerequisite to the performance by Lessor of any of its obligations pursuant to 
the execution and delivery of any Schedule, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor the following: 

(a) A Lessee Resolution executed by the Clerk or Secretary or other comparable officer of Lessee, in substantially the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit B, completed to the satisfaction of Lessor; 

(b) An Opinion of Counsel to Lessee in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C respecting such Schedule and otherwise satisfactory to 
Lessor; 

(c) All documents, including financing statements, affidavits, notices and similar instruments, in form satisfactory to Lessor, which Lessor deems 
necessary or appropriate at that time; 

(d) Such other items, if any, as are set forth in such Schedule or are reasonably required by Lessor. 
This Agreement is not a commitment by Lessor to enter into any Schedule not currently in existence, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to 
impose any obligation upon Lessor to enter into any proposed Schedule, it being understood that whether Lessor enters into any proposed Schedule shall 
be a decision solely within Lessor's discretion. 
Lessee will cooperate with Lessor in Lessor's review of any proposed Schedule.  Without limiting the foregoing, Lessee will provide Lessor with any 
documentation or information Lessor may request in connection with Lessor's review of any proposed Schedule.  Such documentation may include, 
without limitation, documentation concerning the Equipment and its contemplated use and location and documentation or information concerning the 
financial status of Lessee and other matters related to Lessee. 
 
ARTICLE IV.  RENTAL PAYMENTS 
Section 4.01.  Rental Payments to Constitute a Current Expense of Lessee.  Lessor and Lessee understand and intend that the obligation of Lessee to 
pay Rental Payments hereunder shall constitute a current expense of Lessee and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of Lessee in 
contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitations or requirements concerning the creation of indebtedness by Lessee, nor shall 
anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general tax revenues, funds or monies of Lessee. 
Section  4.02.  Payment of Rental Payments.  Lessee shall pay Rental Payments, from any and all legally available funds, in lawful money of the United 
States of America, exclusively to Lessor or, in the event of assignment by Lessor, to its assignee, in the amounts and on the dates set forth in each 89



 

~	3	~MuniStd	

 

 

Schedule. Rental Payments shall be in consideration for Lessee's use of the Equipment during the applicable year in which such payments are due. The 
Rental Payments will be payable without notice or demand at the office of Lessor (or such other place as Lessor may from time to time designate in 
writing). If any Rental Payment or other sum payable under any Schedule is not paid when due, Lessee shall pay to Lessor accrued interest on such 
delinquent amount from the date due thereof until paid at the lesser of 18% or the maximum rate allowed by law.  In the event that it is determined that any 
of the interest components of Rental Payments may not be excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation, Lessee agrees to pay to 
Lessor promptly after any such determination and on the date of each Rental Payment thereafter an additional amount determined by Lessor to 
compensate Lessor for the loss of such excludability (including without limitation, compensation relating to interest expense, penalties or additions to tax), 
which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error. 
Section 4.03.  Interest and Principal Components.  A portion of each Rental Payment is paid as, and represents payment of, interest, and the balance of 
each Rental Payment is paid as, and represents payment of, principal. Each Schedule will set forth the interest component and the principal component of 
each Rental Payment during the Lease Term.  
Section 4.04.  Rental Payments to be Unconditional.  The obligations of Lessee to make payment of the Rental Payments required under this Article IV 
and other sections hereof, and to perform and observe the covenants and agreements contained herein, shall be absolute and unconditional in all events, 
except as expressly provided under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any dispute between Lessee and Lessor, any Vendor or any other dispute between 
Lessee and Lessor, any Vendor or any other person, Lessee shall make all payments of Rental Payments when due and shall not withhold any Rental 
Payments pending final resolution of such dispute, nor shall Lessee assert any right of set-off or counterclaim against its obligation to make such 
payments required under this Agreement. Lessee's obligation to make Rental Payments during the Original Term or the then-current Renewal Term for 
each Schedule shall not be abated through accident or unforeseen circumstances.   
Section 4.05.  Non appropriation.  Lessee is obligated only to pay such Rental Payments under this Agreement (and any additional amounts due 
hereunder, if applicable) as may lawfully be made from funds budgeted and appropriated for that purpose during Lessee's then current fiscal year.  Should 
Lessee fail to budget, appropriate or otherwise make available funds to pay Rental Payments under a Lease following the then current Original Term or 
Renewal Term, that Lease shall be deemed terminated at the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term.  Lessee agrees to deliver written 
notice to Lessor of such termination at least 60 days prior to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term, but failure to give such written 
notice shall not extend the term beyond such Original Term or Renewal Term. 
 
ARTICLE V.  TITLE TO EQUIPMENT; SECURITY INTEREST; OPTION TO PURCHASE 
Section 5.01.  Title to the Equipment.  Upon acceptance of the Equipment by Lessee, title to the Equipment and any and all additions, repairs, 
replacements or modifications shall vest in Lessee, subject to the rights of Lessor under this Agreement;  provided that title to the Equipment that is 
subject to any Lease shall thereafter immediately and without any action by Lessee vest in Lessor, and Lessee shall immediately surrender possession of 
that Equipment to Lessor, upon (a) any termination of that Lease other than termination pursuant to Section 5.04, or (b) the occurrence of an Event of 
Default with respect to that Lease.  It is the intent of the parties hereto that any transfer of title to Lessor pursuant to this Section shall occur automatically 
without the necessity of any bill of sale, certificate of title or other instrument of conveyance.  Lessee shall, nevertheless, execute and deliver any such 
instruments as Lessor may request to evidence such transfer. 
Section 5.02.  Security Interest.  To secure the payment of all Lessee's obligations under this Agreement, Lessee grants to Lessor a security interest 
constituting a first lien on (i) the Equipment and on all additions, attachments, accessions, that are considered to be an integral part of the equipment, and 
substitutions thereto, and on any proceeds there from, and (ii) the acquisition fund established under any Escrow Agreement entered into in connection 
therewith. Lessee agrees to execute such additional documents, in form satisfactory to Lessor, which Lessor deems necessary or appropriate to establish 
and maintain its security interest in the Equipment.  Lessee hereby authorizes the filing of financing statements under the Uniform Commercial Code in 
connection with the security interest granted hereunder. 
Section 5.03.  Personal Property.  Lessor and Lessee agree that the Equipment is and will remain personal property and will not be deemed to be affixed 
to or a part of the real estate on which it may be situated, notwithstanding that the Equipment or any part thereof may be or hereafter become in any 
manner physically affixed or attached to real estate or any building thereon.  Upon the request of Lessor, Lessee will, at Lessee's expense, furnish a 
waiver of any interest in the Equipment from any party having an interest in any such real estate or building. 
Section 5.04.  Option to Purchase.  Lessee shall have the option to purchase Lessor's interest in all (but not less than all) of the Equipment described in 
any Schedule, upon giving written notice to Lessor at least 60 (but not more than 180) days before the date of purchase, at the following times and upon 
the following terms: 
 (a) On the date of the last Rental Payment set forth in that Schedule (assuming this Agreement is renewed at the end of the Original Term and each 

Renewal Term), if the Agreement is still in effect on such day, upon payment in full to Lessor of the Rental Payments and all other amounts then 
due under that Schedule plus One Dollar; 

 (b) On the last day of the Original Term or any Renewal Term then in effect, upon payment in full to Lessor of the Rental Payments and all other 
amounts then due under that Schedule plus the then applicable Purchase Option Price set forth in that Schedule; or 

 (c) In the event of substantial damage to or destruction or condemnation of substantially all of the Equipment listed in that Schedule on the day 
specified in Lessee's written notice to Lessor of its exercise of the purchase option upon payment in full to Lessor of the Rental Payments and all 
other amounts then due under that Schedule, including, without limitation, interest accrued to the date of payment, plus the then applicable 
Purchase Option Price set forth in that Schedule. 

 

ARTICLE VI.  DELIVERY, MAINTENANCE; MODIFICATION; TAXES; INSURANCE AND OTHER CHARGES 
Section 6.01.  Delivery, Installation and Acceptance of Equipment.  Lessee shall order the Equipment, cause the Equipment to be delivered and installed 
at the locations specified in the Schedules and pay any and all delivery and installation costs in connection therewith.  When the Equipment listed in any 
Schedule has been delivered and installed, Lessee shall immediately accept such Equipment and evidence said acceptance by executing and delivering 
to Lessor an Acceptance Certificate in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D. 
Section 6.02.  Location; Inspection.  Once installed, no item of the Equipment will be moved from the location specified for it in the Schedule on which that 
item is listed without Lessor's consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Lessor shall have the right at all reasonable times during 
regular business hours to enter into and upon the property of Lessee for the purpose of inspecting the Equipment. 
Section 6.03.  Maintenance of Equipment by Lessee.  Lessee agrees that at all times during the Lease Term Lessee will, at Lessee's own cost and 
expense, maintain, preserve and keep the Equipment in good repair, working order and condition, and that Lessee will from time to time make or cause to 
be made all necessary and proper repairs, replacements and renewals.  Lessor shall have no responsibility in any of these matters, or for the making of 
improvements or additions to the Equipment. Lessee shall not make material modifications to the Equipment without the prior consent of Lessor. 
Section 6.04.  Liens, Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges.  Lessee shall keep the Equipment free of all liens, charges and 
encumbrances except those created by this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement contemplate that the Equipment will be used for a governmental or 
proprietary purpose of Lessee and, therefore, that the Equipment will be exempt from all taxes presently assessed and levied with respect to personal 
property. In the event that the use, possession or acquisition of the Equipment is found to be subject to taxation in any form (except for income taxes of 
Lessor), Lessee will pay, as the same respectively come due, all taxes and governmental charges of any kind whatsoever that may at any time be lawfully 
assessed or levied against or with respect to the Equipment and any equipment or other property acquired by Lessee in substitution for, as a renewal or 
replacement of, or a modification, improvement or addition to the Equipment, as well as all gas, water, steam, electricity, heat, power, telephone,  utility 
and other charges incurred in the operation, maintenance, use, occupancy and upkeep of the Equipment; provided that, with respect to any governmental 
charges that may lawfully be paid in installments over a period of years, Lessee shall be obligated to pay only such installments as have accrued during 
the Lease Term. Lessee will take no action that will cause the interest portion of any Rental payment to become includable in gross income of the 
recipient for purposes of federal income taxation under the Code, and Lessee will take, and will cause its officers, employees and agents to take, all 
affirmative action legally within its power to prevent such interest from being includable in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation under the  90



 

~	4	~MuniStd	

 

 

Code. Lessee acknowledges that Lessor’s yield with respect to this Agreement is dependent upon the interest component of each Rental Payment being 
excluded from Lessor’s income pursuant to the Code. 
Section 6.05.  Provisions Regarding Insurance.  At its own expense, Lessee shall maintain (a) casualty insurance insuring the Equipment against loss or 
damage by fire and all other risks covered by the standard extended coverage endorsement then in use in the State, and any other risks reasonably 
required by Lessor, in an amount at least equal to the replacement cost of the Equipment, (b) liability insurance that protects Lessor from liability in all 
events in form and amount satisfactory to Lessor and (c) workers' compensation coverage as required by the laws of the State; provided that, with 
Lessor's prior written consent, Lessee may self-insure against the risks described in clauses (a) and (b); provided further that, if Lessor provides such 
consent Lessee shall provide to Lessor information with respect to such self-insurance program as Lessor may request from time to time.  All insurance 
proceeds from casualty losses shall be payable as hereinafter provided.  Lessee shall furnish to Lessor certificates evidencing such coverage throughout 
the Lease Term. All such casualty and liability insurance shall be with insurers that are acceptable to Lessor, shall name Lessor as a loss payee and an 
additional insured, respectively, and shall contain a provision to the effect that such insurance shall not be canceled or modified materially without first 
giving written notice thereof to Lessor at least 30 days in advance of such cancellation or modification.  All such casualty insurance shall contain a 
provision making any losses payable to Lessee and Lessor as their respective interests may appear. 
Section 6.06.  Advances.  In the event Lessee shall fail to maintain the full insurance coverage required by this Agreement or shall fail to keep the 
Equipment in good repair and operating condition, Lessor may (but shall be under no obligation to) purchase the required insurance and pay the premiums 
on the same or may make such repairs or replacements as are necessary and provide for payment thereof; and all amounts so advanced therefore by 
Lessor shall constitute additional rent for the then-current Original Term or Renewal Term, and Lessee covenants and agrees to pay such amounts so 
advanced by Lessor with interest thereon from the date advanced until paid at the rate of 18% per annum or the maximum interest rate permitted by law, 
whichever is less. 
 

ARTICLE VII.  DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION: USE OF NET PROCEEDS 
Section 7.01.  Risk of Loss.  Lessee is responsible for the entire risk of loss of or damage or destruction to the Equipment.  No such loss, damage or 
destruction shall relieve Lessee of any obligation under this Agreement or any Lease. 
Section 7.02.  Damage, Destruction and Condemnation.  If (a) the Equipment listed on any Schedule or any portion thereof is destroyed, in whole or in 
part, or is damaged by fire or other casualty or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the Equipment or any part thereof shall be taken under the exercise of 
the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or by any person, firm or corporation acting pursuant to governmental authority, Lessee and 
Lessor will cause the Net Proceeds of any insurance claim or condemnation award to be applied to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration, 
modification or improvement of that Equipment, unless Lessee shall have exercised its option to purchase that Equipment pursuant to Section 5.04.  Any 
balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has been completed shall be paid to Lessee. 
Section 7.03.  Insufficiency of Net Proceeds.  If the Net Proceeds are insufficient to pay in full the cost of any replacement, repair, restoration, modification 
or improvement referred to in Section 7.02, Lessee shall either complete such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement and pay any 
costs thereof in excess of the amount of the Net Proceeds, unless Lessee, pursuant to Section 5.04, purchases Lessor's interest in the Equipment 
destroyed, damaged or taken and any other Equipment listed in the same Schedule.  The amount of the Net Proceeds, if any, remaining after completing 
such repair, restoration, modification or improvement or after purchasing Lessor's interest in the Equipment shall be retained by Lessee.  If Lessee shall 
make any payments pursuant to this Section, Lessee shall not be entitled to any reimbursement therefore from Lessor nor shall Lessee be entitled to any 
diminution of the amounts payable under Article IV. 
 

ARTICLE VIII.  DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; VENDOR'S WARRANTIES; USE OF THE EQUIPMENT 
Section 8.01.  Disclaimer of Warranties.  LESSEE HAS SELECTED THE EQUIPMENT AND THE VENDORS.  LESSOR MAKES NO WARRANTY OR 
REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS FOR USE OF THE EQUIPMENT, OR WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION WITH RESPECT THERETO. In no 
event shall Lessor be liable for an incidental, indirect, special or consequential damage in connection with or arising out of this Agreement or the existence, 
furnishing, functioning or Lessee's use of any item or products or service provided for in this Agreement. 
Section 8.02.  Vendor's Warranties.  Lessor hereby irrevocably appoints Lessee its agent and attorney-in-fact during the Lease Term, so long as Lessee 
shall not be in default hereunder, to assert from time to time whatever claims and rights, including warranties of the Equipment, which Lessor may have 
against the Vendor of the Equipment. Lessee's sole remedy for the breach of such warranty, indemnification or representation shall be against the Vendor 
of the Equipment, and not against Lessor, nor shall such matter have any effect, whatsoever on the rights and obligations of Lessor with respect to this 
Agreement, including the right to receive full and timely payments hereunder. Lessee expressly acknowledges that Lessor makes, and has made no 
representation or warranties whatsoever as to the existence or availability of such warranties of the Vendor of the Equipment. 
Section 8.03.  Use of the Equipment.  Lessee will not install, use, operate or maintain the Equipment improperly, carelessly, in violation of any applicable 
law or in a manner contrary to that contemplated by this Agreement. Lessee shall provide all permits and licenses, if any, necessary for the installation and 
operation of the Equipment. In addition, Lessee agrees to comply in all respects (including, without limitation, with respect to the use, maintenance and 
operation of each item of the Equipment) with all laws of the jurisdictions in which its operations involving any item of Equipment may extend and any 
legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body exercising any power or jurisdiction over the items of the Equipment; provided, however, that Lessee 
may contest in good faith the validity or application of any such law or rule in any reasonable manner which does not, in the opinion of Lessor, adversely 
affect the title of Lessor in and to any of the items of the Equipment or its interest or rights under this Agreement. 
Section 8.04.  Essential Nature of the Equipment.  Lessee confirms and affirms that the Equipment is essential to the function of Lessee and the services 
provided to its citizens, that there is an immediate need for the Equipment which is not temporary or expected to diminish in the foreseeable future, and 
that Lessee will use substantially all the Equipment for the purpose of performing one or more governmental or proprietary functions consistent with the 
permissible scope of its authority. 
 
ARTICLE IX.  ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, INDEMNIFICATION, MORTGAGING AND SELLING 
Section 9.01.  Assignment by Lessor.  Lessor’s interest in, to, and under this Agreement; any Lease and the Equipment may be assigned and reassigned 
in whole or in part to one or more assignees by Lessor at any time subsequent to its execution. Lessee hereby agrees to maintain a written record of each 
such assignment in form necessary to comply with Section 149(a) of the Code.  No such assignment shall be binding on Lessee until it has received 
written notice from Lessor of the assignment disclosing the name and address of the assignee.  Lessee agrees to execute all documents, including chattel 
mortgages or financing statements that may be reasonably requested by Lessor or any assignee to protect its interests in the Equipment and in this 
Agreement.  Lessee shall not have the right to and shall not assert against any assignee any claim, counterclaim, defense, set-off or other right Lessee 
may from time to time have against Lessor. 
Section 9.02.  Assignment and Subleasing by Lessee.  None of Lessee's interest in, to and under this Agreement and in the Equipment may be sold, 
assigned, subleased, pledged or otherwise encumbered by Lessee without the prior written consent of Lessor.  
Section 9.03.  Release and Indemnification Covenants.  To the extent permitted by law, Lessee shall indemnify, protect, hold harmless, save and keep 
harmless Lessor from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, claims and damages whatsoever, regardless of cause thereof, and all 
expenses in connection therewith (including, without limitation, counsel fees and expenses, penalties connected therewith imposed on interest received) 
arising out of or as (a) result of the entering into of this Agreement, (b) the ownership of any item of the Equipment, (c) the manufacture, ordering, 
acquisition, use, operation, condition, purchase, delivery, rejection, storage or return of any item of the Equipment, (d) or any accident in connection with 
the operation, use, condition, possession, storage or return of any item of the Equipment resulting in damage to property or injury to or death to any 
person, and/or (e) the breach of any covenant herein or any material misrepresentation contained herein.  The indemnification arising under this paragraph 
shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding the full payment of all obligations under this Agreement or the termination of the Lease Term for any 
reason. 91



 

~	5	~MuniStd	

 

 

 
ARTICLE X.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
Section 10.01.  Events of Default Defined.  Subject to the provisions of Section 4.05, any of the following events shall constitute an "Event of Default" 
under any Lease: 

(a)  Failure by Lessee to pay any Rental Payment or other payment required to be paid under that Lease at the time specified in that Lease; 
(b)  Failure by Lessee to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under that Lease, other 

than as referred to in subparagraph (a) above, for a period of 30 days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied is given to Lessee by Lessor, unless Lessor shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided that, if 
the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period, Lessor will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension 
of such time if corrective action is instituted by Lessee within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the default is corrected; 

(c)  Any statement, representation or warranty made by Lessee in or pursuant to that Lease or its execution, delivery or performance shall prove to 
have been false, incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect on the date when made;  

(d) Any provision of that Lease shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and binding on Lessee, or shall be declared to be null and void, or 
the validity or enforceability thereof shall be contested by Lessee or any governmental agency or authority if the loss of such provision would 
materially adversely affect the rights or security of Lessor, or Lessee shall deny that it has any further liability or obligation under that Lease. 

(e)  Lessee shall (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of Lessee, or of all or a substantial part of 
the assets of Lessee, (ii) be unable, fail or admit in writing its inability generally to pay its debts as they  become  due, (iii) make a 
general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iv) have an order for relief entered against it under applicable federal bankruptcy law, or (v) file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or taking advantage of any 
insolvency law or any answer admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against Lessee in any bankruptcy, reorganization or insolvency 
proceeding; or 

(f)  An order, judgment or decree shall be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition or appointing a receiver, trustee, 
custodian or liquidator of Lessee or of all or a substantial part of the assets of Lessee, in each case without its application, approval or consent, 
and such order, judgment or decree shall continue unstayed and in effect for any period of 30 consecutive days. 

Section 10.02.  Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default under any Lease exists, Lessor shall have the right, at its sole option without any 
further demand or notice, to take one or any combination of the following remedial steps: 

(a)  By written notice to Lessee, declare all Rental Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee under that Lease to the end of the then current 
Original Term or Renewal Term to be due; 

(b)  With or without terminating that Lease, Lessor may, upon 5 days written notice to Lessee, enter the premises where any Equipment that is 
subject to that Lease is located and retake possession of that Equipment or require Lessee at Lessee's expense to promptly return any or all of 
the Equipment to the possession of Lessor at such place within the United States as Lessor shall specify, and sell or lease the Equipment or, for 
the account of Lessee, sublease the Equipment, continuing to hold Lessee liable for the difference between (i) the Rental Payments and other 
amounts payable by Lessee under that Lease plus the then-applicable Purchase Option Price for that Equipment and (ii) the net proceeds of any 
such sale, leasing or subleasing (after deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising its remedies under this Agreement, including without 
limitation all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing the Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneers' and 
attorneys' fees) provided that the amount of Lessee’s liability under this subparagraph (b) shall not exceed the Rental Payments and other 
amounts otherwise due under that Lease plus the remaining Rental Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee under that Lease to the 
end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term; and 

(c)  Lessor may take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under that Lease or as the owner of 
any or all of the Equipment that is subject to that Lease. 

In addition, whenever an Event of Default exists with respect to any Rental Payment required by a particular Schedule or with respect to any other 
payment, covenant, condition, agreement, statement, representation or warranty set forth in that Schedule or applicable to that Schedule or the 
Equipment listed therein, Lessor shall have the right, at its sole option without any further demand or notice, to take one or any combination of the 
following remedial steps: 

  (d)  By written notice to Lessee, Lessor may declare all Rental Payments payable by Lessee pursuant to that Schedule and other amounts payable 
by Lessee under this Agreement to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term to be due; 

  (e)  With or without terminating that Schedule, Lessor may, upon 5 days written notice to Lessee, enter the premises where the Equipment listed in 
that Schedule is located and retake possession of that Equipment or require Lessee at Lessee's expense to promptly return any or all of that 
Equipment to the possession of Lessor at such place within the United States as Lessor shall specify, and sell or lease that Equipment or, for 
the account of Lessee, sublease that Equipment, continuing to hold Lessee liable for the difference between (i) the Rental Payments payable by 
Lessee pursuant to that Schedule and other amounts related to that Schedule or the Equipment listed therein that are payable by Lessee 
hereunder plus the then applicable Purchase Option Price for that Equipment, and (ii) the net proceeds of any such sale, leasing or subleasing 
(after deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising its remedies under this Agreement, including without limitation all expenses of taking 
possession, storing,  reconditioning and selling or leasing such Equipment and all brokerage, auctioneers' and attorneys' fees) provided that the 
amount of Lessee’s liability under this subparagraph (e) shall not exceed the Rental Payments and other amounts otherwise due under that 
Schedule plus the remaining Rental Payments and other amounts payable by Lessee under that Schedule to the end of the then current Original 
Term or Renewal Term; and 

  (f)  Lessor may take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to enforce its rights under that Schedule, this Agreement 
with respect to that Schedule and the Equipment listed therein. 

In addition to the remedies specified above, Lessor may charge interest on all amounts due to it at the rate of 10% per annum or the maximum amount 
permitted by law, whichever is less. The exercise of any such remedies respecting any such Event of Default shall not relieve Lessee of any other liabilities 
under any other Schedules, this Agreement related to any other Schedule or the Equipment listed therein. 
Section 10.03.  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy conferred upon or reserved to Lessor by this Article is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy 
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this lease. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing 
upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof but any such right and power may be exercised from 
time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient by Lessor or its assignee. 
Section 10.04.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses.  If Lessee should default under any of the provisions hereof and Lessor should employ 
attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of moneys or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the 
part of Lessee contained in this Agreement, Lessee agrees, to the extent it is permitted by law to do so, that it will, if assessed by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, pay to Lessor the reasonable fees of those attorneys and other reasonable expenses so incurred by Lessor. 
Section 10.05.  Application of Moneys.  Any net proceeds from the exercise of any remedy hereunder (after deducting all expenses of Lessor in exercising 
such remedies including without limitation all expenses of taking possession, storing, reconditioning and selling or leasing Equipment and all brokerage, 
auctioneer's or attorney's fees) shall be applied as follows: 
(a) If such remedy is exercised solely with respect to a single Schedule, Equipment listed in that Schedule or rights under the Agreement related to 

that Schedule, then to amounts due pursuant to that Schedule and other amounts related to that Schedule or that Equipment. 
(b)  If such remedy is exercised with respect to more than one Schedule, Equipment listed in more than one Schedule or rights under the Agreement 

related to more than one Schedule, then to amounts due pursuant to those Schedules pro rata.  

 
 

92



 

~	6	~MuniStd	

 

 

ARTICLE XI.  MISCELLANEOUS 
Section 11.01.  Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered 
or mailed by registered mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at their respective places of business. 
Section 11.02.  Binding Effect; Entire Agreement; Amendments and Modifications.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon 
Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors and assigns. The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or 
amended in any manner whatsoever  except by written instrument signed by the Lessor and the Lessee; nor shall any such amendment that affects the 
rights of Lessor's assignee be effective without such assignee's consent. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
Section 11.03.  Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State. 
Section 11.04.  Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
Section 11.05.  Amendments, Changes and Modifications.  This Agreement may be amended, added to, changed or modified by written agreement duly 
executed by Lessor and Lessee. 
Section 11.06.  Execution in Counterparts; Chattel Paper.  This Agreement, including in writing each Schedule, may be executed in several counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument; except (1) to the extent that various Schedules and 
this Agreement as it relates thereto constitutes separate Leases as provided in this Agreement and (2) that Lessor’s interest in, to and under any Schedule 
and the Agreement as it relates to that Schedule, and the Equipment listed in that Schedule may be sold or pledged only by delivering possession of the 
original counterpart of that Schedule marked “Counterpart No. 1,” which Counterpart No. 1 shall constitute chattel paper for purposes of the Uniform 
Commercial Code. 
Section 11.07.  Usury.  The parties hereto agree that the charges in this Agreement and any Lease shall not be a violation of usury or other law.  Any such 
excess charge shall be applied in such order as to conform this Agreement and such Lease to such applicable law. 
Section 11.08.  Jury Trial Waiver.  To the extent permitted by law, lessee agrees to waive its right to a trial by jury. 
Section 11.09.  Facsimile Documentation.  Lessee agrees that a facsimile copy of this Agreement or any Lease with facsimile signatures may be treated 
as an original and will be admissible as evidence of this Agreement or such Lease. 
Section 11.10.  Captions.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent 
of any provisions or sections of this Agreement. 

 
Lessor and Lessee have caused this Agreement to be executed in their names by their duly authorized representatives listed below. 
 

Lease No. <Lease Number> 
 
 

LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 

 LESSOR: 
Community First National Bank 

   

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title>  Signature 

  Name and Title 

93



 

~	7	~MuniStd	

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT NO. <Equipment Schedule No>, Dated <Equipment Schedule Date> 
 

Counterpart No. 1,  
 
LESSOR’S INTEREST IN, TO AND UNDER THIS SCHEDULE AND THE AGREEMENT AS IT RELATES TO THIS SCHEDULE MAY BE 
SOLD OR PLEDGED ONLY BY DELIVERING POSSESSION OF COUNTERPART NO. 1 OF THIS SCHEDULE, WHICH 
COUNTERPART NO. 1 SHALL CONSTITUTE CHATTEL PAPER FOR PURPOSES OF THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE. 
 
Re:  Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First National Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal 
Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 
 

1. Defined Terms.  All terms used herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the above referenced Master Equipment Lease Purchase 
Agreement (the "Master Equipment Lease"). 

2. Equipment.  The Equipment included under this Schedule of Equipment is comprised of the items described in the Equipment Description 
attached hereto as Attachment 1, together with all replacements, substitutions, repairs, restorations, modifications, attachments, accessions, 
additions and improvements thereof or thereto. 

3. Payment Schedule.  The Rental Payments and Purchase Option Prices under this Schedule of Equipment are set forth in the Payment 
Schedule attached as Attachment 2 hereto. 

4. Representations, Warranties and Covenants.  Lessee hereby represents, warrants, and covenants that its representations, warranties and 
covenants set forth in the Agreement are true and correct as though made on the date of commencement of Rental Payments on this 
Schedule. 

5. The Master Equipment Lease.  This Schedule is hereby made as part of the Master Equipment Lease and Lessor and Lessee hereby ratify 
and confirm the Master Equipment Lease.  The terms and provisions of the Master Equipment Lease (other than to the extent that they relate 
solely to other Schedules or Equipment listed on other Schedules) are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof. 

         
 
Lease Number: <Lease Number> 
 
 
 

LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 

 LESSOR:
Community First National Bank 

   

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title>  Signature 

  Name and Title 

94



 

~	8	~MuniStd	

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1  
EQUIPMENT DESCRIPTION 

 
RE: Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, to Master 

Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First 
National Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 

 
Lease Number: <Lease Number> 

 
 

<Equipment>      
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

With a total acquisition cost of <Acquisition Cost>; together with all additions, accessions and replacements thereto. Lessee hereby 
certifies the description of the personal property set forth above constitutes an accurate description of the "Equipment", as defined in the 
attached Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement and the Equipment is located on the premise of the Lessee unless otherwise 
noted by the Lessee. 
 
 
 
 
 

Physical location where equipment will be stored after delivery:          

 
 
 

 
 
 

LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 
 

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title> 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

95



 

~	9	~MuniStd	

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2  

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 
  
RE: Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, to Master 

Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First 
National Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 

 
Lease Number: <Lease Number> 
 
MONTHLY PAYMENTS NEED ACH / ADVANCE PAYMENT VERBIAGE “DUE AT CLOSING” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 
 

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title> 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

96



 

~	10	~MuniStd	

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

LESSEE RESOLUTION 
  
 

Re:   Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, to Master 
Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First 
National Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 
 
I, the undersigned, the duly appointed, qualified and acting <Signer 3 Title> of the above captioned Lessee do 
hereby certify this date ________________________, as follows: 

 
(1) Lessee did, at a meeting of the governing body of the Lessee held on _________________, by motion duly 

made, seconded and carried, in accordance with all requirements of law, approve and authorize the execution 
and delivery of the above referenced Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No> (the "Schedule") 
on its behalf by the following named representative of the Lessee, to witness: 

 
          
                              Authorized Signer: <Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title> 
 
 

(2) The above named representative of the Lessee held at the time of such authorization and holds at the present 
time the office set forth above. 

(3) The meeting of the governing body of the Lessee at which the Schedule was approved and authorized to be 
executed was duly called, regularly convened and attended throughout by the requisite majority of the 
members thereof or by other appropriate official approval and that the action approving the Schedule and 
authorizing the execution thereof has not been altered or rescinded. 

(4) No event or condition that constitutes, or with the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both would constitute, 
an Event of Default (as such term is defined in the above referenced Master Equipment Lease Purchase 
Agreement) exists at the date hereof. 

(5) All insurance required in accordance with the above referenced Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement 
is currently maintained by the Lessee. 

(6) Lessee has, in accordance with the requirements of law, fully budgeted and appropriated sufficient funds for the 
current budget year to make the Rental Payments scheduled to come due during the Original Term and to meet 
its other obligations for the Original Term (as such terms are defined in the above referenced Master 
Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement) and such funds have not been expended for other purposes. 

(7) The fiscal year of Lessee is from _______________________ to ______________________. 
 
The signatures below from the designated individuals from the Governing Body of the Lessee evidence the adoption by the 
Governing Body of this resolution. 
         
<Legal Name of Lessee> 

 

Attested By:__________________________________________________________________________ 

                        <Signer 2>, <Signer 2 Title>  

 

Certified By:__________________________________________________________________________ 

                         <Signer 3>, <Signer 3 Title> 

 

   

 
 
 

97



 

~	11	~MuniStd	

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 

OPINION OF LESSEE'S COUNSEL 
 

(Must be re-Printed onto attorney’s letterhead) 
 
(Date) 

 
Community First National Bank 
215 S. Seth Child Road 
Manhattan, KS 66502 
 
 
Re:  Lessee:  <Legal Name of Lessee> 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
As legal counsel to <Legal Name of Lessee> (the "Lessee"), I have examined (a) an executed counterpart of a certain Master Equipment 
Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, and Exhibits thereto by and between Community First National Bank 
(the "Lessor") and Lessee, Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, and a certain 
Escrow Agreement dated as of <CommencementDate>, (collectively, the “Agreement”) by and between Lessor and Lessee, which, 
among other things, provides for the lease with option to purchase by the Lessee of certain property listed in the Schedule (the 
"Equipment"); (b) an executed counterpart of the ordinances or resolutions of Lessee which, among other things, authorizes Lessee to 
execute the Agreement and (c) such other opinions, documents and matters of law as I have deemed necessary in connection with the 
following opinions. 
 
 Based on the foregoing, I am of the following opinions: 
 
(1) Lessee’s true and correct name is <Legal Name of Lessee>. 
(2) Lessee is a public body corporate and politic, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State, and has a substantial 

amount of the following sovereign powers:  (a) the power to tax, (b) the power of eminent domain, and (c) police power; 
(3) Lessee has the requisite power and authority to lease the Equipment with an option to purchase and to execute and deliver the 

Agreement and to perform its obligations under the Agreement; 
(4) The Agreement and the other documents either attached thereto or required therein have been duly authorized, approved and 

executed by and on behalf of Lessee and the Agreement and other documents either attached thereto or required therein are the 
valid and binding obligations of Lessee enforceable in accordance with their terms; 

(5) The authorization, approval and execution of the Agreement and all other proceedings of Lessee relating to the transactions 
contemplated thereby have been performed in accordance with all open meeting laws, public bidding laws and all other applicable 
state or federal laws; and 

(6) There is no proceeding pending or threatened in any court or before any governmental authority or arbitration board or tribunal 
that, if adversely determined, would adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Agreement or the security interest of 
Lessor or its assigns, as the case may be, in the Equipment. 

(7)  The signatures of the officers which appear on the Agreement are true and genuine; I know said officers and know them to hold 
the offices set forth below their names. 

(8) No further approval, consent or withholding of objection is required from any federal, state or local governmental authority with 
respect to the entering into or performance by the Lessee of the Lease and the transaction contemplated thereby. 

(9) The Equipment leased pursuant to the Agreement constitutes personal property and when subjected to use by Lessee will not be 
or become fixtures under applicable law. 

(10) The Lessee is a political subdivision within the meaning of Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and the 
related regulations and rulings.   

(11) The leasing of the Equipment pursuant to the Agreement is exempt from all sales and use taxes against either the Lessor or the 
Lessee during the term of the Lease pursuant to the Agreement and the Equipment will be exempt from all state and local 
personal property or other ad valorem taxes. 

 
All capitalized terms herein shall have the same meanings as in the foregoing Agreement unless otherwise provided herein.  Lessor, its 
successors and assigns, and any counsel rendering an opinion on the tax-exempt status of the interest components of the Rental 
Payments are entitled to rely on this opinion. 
 
 
Signature of Legal Counsel 

 
 
 
 

98



 

~	12	~MuniStd	

 

 

 
EXHIBIT D 

 

ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE 
 
 
 

Community First National Bank 
215 S. Seth Child Road 
Manhattan, KS 66502 
 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 

 RE: Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, to Master 
Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First National 
Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 

 
In accordance with the Master Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement (the "Agreement"), the undersigned Lessee 
hereby certifies and represents to, and agrees with Lessor as follows: 

 
 (1) All of the Equipment (as such term is defined in the Agreement) listed in the above referenced Schedule of 

Equipment (the "Schedule") has been delivered, installed and accepted on the date hereof. 
 (2) Lessee has conducted such inspection and/or testing of the Equipment listed in the Schedule as it deems 

necessary and appropriate and hereby acknowledges that it accepts the Equipment for all purposes. 
 (3) Lessee is currently maintaining the insurance coverage required by Section 6.05 of the Agreement. 
 (4) No event or condition that constitutes, or with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute, an Event of 

Default (as defined in the Agreement) exists at the date hereof. 
 (5) Lessee has appropriated and/or taken other lawful actions necessary to provide moneys sufficient to pay all 

Rental Payments required to be paid under the Agreement during the current Budget Year of Lessee, and such 
moneys will be applied in payment of all Rental Payments due and payable during such current Budget Year. 

 (6) The governing body of Lessee has approved the authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement on its 
behalf by the authorized representative of Lessee who signed the Agreement. 

 

 
LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 
 

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title> 

Date 

  

 
 
 

*If delivery is not immediate, keep until final delivery. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

99



 

~	13	~MuniStd	

 

 

 
BANK QUALIFIED CERTIFICATE  

 
RE: Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, to Master 
Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First National 
Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 
 
Whereas, Lessee hereby represents it is a “Bank Qualified” Issuer for the calendar year in which the above referenced 
Schedule is executed by making the following designations with respect to Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code.  (A 
“Bank Qualified Issuer” is an issuer that issues less than $10,000,000 dollars of tax-exempt obligations during the calendar 
year). 

 

Now, therefor, Lessee hereby designates the above referenced Schedule as follows: 

 

1. Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation.  Pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B)(i) of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986 as amended (the “Code”), the Lessee hereby specifically designates the above referenced Schedule as a 

“qualified tax-exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  In compliance with Section 

265(b)(3)(D) of the Code, the Lessee hereby represents that the Lessee will not designate more than $10,000,000 of 

obligations issued by the Lessee in the calendar year during which the above referenced Schedule is executed and 

delivered as such “qualified tax-exempt obligations”. 

 

2. Issuance Limitation.  In compliance with the requirements of Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Code, the Lessee hereby 

represents that the Lessee (including all subordinate entities of the Lessee within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3)(E) 

of the Code) reasonably anticipates not to issue in the calendar year during which the above referenced Schedule is 

executed and delivered, obligations bearing interest exempt from federal income taxation under Section 103 of the 

Code (other than “private activity bonds” as defined in Section 141 of the Code) in an amount greater than 

$10,000,000. 

 

 
LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 
 

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title> 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 100



 

~	14	~MuniStd	

 

 

 

 
 

INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Lessee:  <Legal Name of Lessee> 
 
Please mark one of the following: 
 
(  )  Pursuant to Section 6.05 of the Agreement, you have agreed to provide us evidence of insurance covering the property 
in the Agreement.  A Certificate of Insurance naming all insured parties and coverage must be provided to us as soon as 
possible, but no later than the date on which delivery of equipment occurs.   
 
(  )  Pursuant to Section 6.05 of the Agreement, we are self-insured for all risk, physical damage, and public liability and will 
provide proof of such self-insurance in letter form, together with a copy of the statute authorizing this form of insurance. 
Coverage must be provided to us as soon as possible, but no later than the date on which delivery of equipment occurs. 
 
Equipment to be insured: <Equipment>  
 
Policy should be issued and mailed to: Community First National Bank and/or Its Assigns 
          215 S. Seth Child Road 
           Manhattan, KS 66502 
          
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
 
1. LIABILITY             

 $1,000,000.00 Aggregate Bodily Injury 
 $1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence 
 Community First National Bank and/or Its Assigns MUST be listed as additional insured and loss payee. 

2. PHYSICAL DAMAGE             
 All risk coverage to guarantee proceeds sufficient to cover the replacement cost of the equipment.   
 Community First National Bank and/or Its Assigns MUST be listed as additional insured and loss payee. 

3. ENDORSEMENT            
 Lessor will receive at least thirty (30) days written notice from Insurer prior to alteration, cancellation or 

reduction of insurance coverage. 
 Deductibles should be listed on the Certificate of Coverage 

 
THE CERTIFICATE SHOULD BE  

EMAILED TO <MY:Lessee Email> 
OR FAXED TO: 888.777.7875 

 

Insurance Company Name: 

Agents Name:  
Address: 

City:  State:  Zip: 

Phone:  Fax:  Email:  
  
 
  
   

LESSEE: 
<Legal Name of Lessee> 
 

<Signer 1>, <Signer 1 Title> 

 

 
 101



 

~	15	~MuniStd	

 

 

 
 

INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS  
 

RE: Schedule of Equipment No. <Equipment Schedule No>, dated <Equipment Schedule Date>, to Master 
Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement, dated as of <CommencementDate>, between Community First National 
Bank, as Lessor, and <Legal Name of Lessee>, as Lessee. 
 
Lease Number: <Lease Number> 
 
Equipment Description:  <Equipment> 
 
 
Please provide contact information for billing and invoicing purposes.  

 

 
 

Person/Department:   
P.O. Box/Street:   

City, State, Zip  

Telephone Number:  

Email Address:  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

102



18-27
March 27, 2018

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



Introduced by: City Manager Williams 

Date: March 27, 2018 

 

City of Bethel 

Page 1 of 1 IM 18-04 

IM 18-04 

 
 
 
 
TITLE: Monthly Financial Report to the Council.    
 

Routed to: Department Signature/Date 

   
 

 
The attached February Financial Report was prepared and distributed to the 
Bethel City Council members for their review. The Monthly Financial Report to 
the Council contains:  
 

 Rural Utility Business Advisor Program (RUBA) Financial Statement related 
specifically to the City’s Water and Sewer Fund. The Council’s review of 
this summary is required by granting agencies.  

 
 General Financial Statement for the City of Bethel to include the City’s 

Endowment Fund.  
 

 
 

CITY OF BETHEL CITY COUNCIL INFORMATIVE MEMORANDUM 

112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142





18-05
March 27,2018

143

























144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

159



160



161



162



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

163



 
CITY OF BETHEL 

P.O. Box 388 
Bethel, Alaska  99559 

Ph. (907) 543-4150 
Fax (907) 543-3817 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

DATE: 

 

March 6, 2018 to March 20, 2018 

 

  
TO: 

 
City Council 

 
FROM: 

 
Peter Williams, City Manager 

RE: Managers’ Report 
  

  

March 6; Reviewed Tec-Pro contract; meet with DOT and DOWL to go over the road 

projects in Bethel, and various city projects. 

 

March 7; ACS RFP, reviewed the conditions compared for the requirements needed per 

the RFP’s technical criteria. Provided auditors with contracts for the water trucks and heavy 

equipment. Meet with the USDA representatives and city administration to review the 

Avenues Project. Attended the Public Saftey and Transportation Committee meeting to 

review DOT’s plans. Notified that PW building had running water. 

 

March 8-Worked with the finance dept. Regarding the audit, sales tax and GL codes for 

various projects and budgets. Requested an update on the 911 system rev. and expenditures, 

discussed the CSP grant, FY 19 budget discussions. Forwarded IC utility permits to 

DOWL. Resolved a complaint from a utility customer regarding billing. Talk to the Sales 

Tax SPECicalest about notifying delinquent customers. 

 

March 9- Phoned the DOT chief of Maintenance and exchanged e-mails regarding CEH. 

Resolve the disconnect between RUBA and Finance Dept reporting what the City pays the 

State for unemployment.Since we are self-reporting the quarterly reconciliation takes to 

months to reconcile after the quarter ends. Worked on dumpsters for FY-19, reviewed 

hours CA has used for various departments and the ASC response to questions we had 

regarding the RFP for the Courthouse. 

 

March 12- Reviewed the Avenues Project, courthouse RFP. USCG has requested a meeting 

to set up classes for spill response. Reviewed the CSP,911, Police Dept. and the Transit 

Budget and Grant. Received a hard copy the utility permit from the DOT for the road 

crossing for the Inst. Corr.  

164



March13-Discussed the Parks and Recs Committee request for an updated finical report 

for the pool with the Finance Director. The recorder for this committee is quit, and the 

finance director was not aware that he was requested at this meeting, though he said at the 

last meeting he would forward an updated financial report.  The GL clerk has reconciled 

the revenues and expenditures accurately through the end of  December. The pool fund is 

no different than any other fund that we have in that we are not ignoring it and we are trying 

the best we can to keep those who are concerned about the fund up to date.  

 

March 14; DEC-Discussed Public Work method oF unthawing frozen sewer pipes. We will 

file a non-compliance form each time there is an occurrence. Yuut has a board meeting 

April 16th. GL Codes for projects and CH2M ’s billing. Reviewed various Depts. Budgets. 

 

March 15- Reviewed the extension of AML’s contract with AML representatives. Edited 

a letter to the DOT concerning the CEH; Dept budget reviews. Reviewed the Comp Plan 

2035 regarding piped and hauled services for water and sewer for the Avenues project. 

 

March 16- Signed AM for the CAG; Courthouse RFP: Airport Lift Station lease; Reviewed 

departments budgets. 

 

March 17- Attended RepZulkosy’s listening session at the high school from 5;30 pm to 

7:30 pm 

 

March 19- PW Director and I looked at the various stages of construction regarding the 

Institutional Corridor. Reviewed Healthfit contract, employee fees, and maintenance with 

Stacey Readon and Patty Burley.-AM’s for the CSP Grant reviewd.- Reviewed the AM for 

the Carmen Jackson contract.- Ordinance 1728(j)-.Letter for GCI concerning 911.- Letters 

to Gov.; Lt; Gov., Sen. Hoffman, Rep.Zulkosky and DOT administrators. The risk manager 

is reviewing AKOSH request to perform an occupational safety and health enforcement 

inspection. 

 

March-20 Attended the Kuimarvik Board meeting, Worked on the material for the agenda 

for the 27th. Reviewed a policy from Wassille for a Reserve Police Officer Program that 

perhaps could be used to develop police officers. Reviewed CSP requirements for the use 

of the grant.Reviewed YKFC monthly report and forwarded to the City’s Maintenance 

personnel YKFC comments about maintenance tasks. 

 

 
Institutional Corridor-Construction is underway. We finally received a utility permit to 

install a casing by trenching across the highway, instead of boring, the method will save 

$180,000. I have asked for a review of the costs of this project. One problem we see is that 

the construction of the hospital complex may cause some extra work on the contractor’s 

part.  

 

Jetty/Sewer Lagoon-We received two bids on Jan 9th for construction of the jetty.The bid 

was approximately one million dollars below the estimated cost of the project. We have 

asked the USDA if we can use the leftover funds toward another project. 

. 

 

165



Bethel Bank Stabilization Project (BBSP) & Ridgecrest Dr. – Working to find material 

for our match for this project. As of this date we will not be required to provide a match 

which was to be 25%. 

 

The Avenues- Reviewing the options for the PER/EA. On March 6 meet with DOWL to 

discuss the PER. The USDA will allow for a phased approach for this project which will 

include the sewer and water trucks. Telephonic meeting with USDA, DOWL, and city to 

discuss options regarding the PER/EA. USDA has given DOWL the go-ahead to finish the 

PRE/EA. After PER/EA from DOWL Inc., is completed the USDA will evaluate the report 

and pick option based on the lowest life-cycle costs. 

 

Pinkys Park-Boardwalk- Discussed with ONC’s Pat Samson requesting a proposal of 

cost for design and construction of installing lighting along the boardwalk. We will keep 

ONC informed of the progress. We think that the project can be broken up into two phases 

uses a yearly grant that ONC can facilitate.  

 

PD – Asked the Police Chief to look into updating our 911 system so we can track 911 call 

from dispatch.- 

 

Ridgecrest Drive-.Discussed DOT plans to the Public Saftey Committee about the roads 

in Bethel. The public comment period ended March 16, and we are waiting for them to be 

reviewed. 

 

Tundra Ridge Road Realignment-  Meet with DOWL to discuss DOT.’s transportation 

plan for the City, which also includes this road. Resolution from city council forward to 

comments for the St. Trans. Imp. Plan  

 

Landfill Closure-  We are going to take soil samples and have them retested to see if the 

fill at the sand pit that we own will meet the requirements for the cover material for closing 

the landfill. 

 

PW Boilers- Engineers were on site to look at the boiler room and are working on a design. 

Notified on 3/16 that a structural review will have to be performed to make show the floor 

is string enough to hols the new boilers. 

 

Courthouse RFP- Artitech reviewed Ak.Court Sys. RFP to determine what the City 

needed to include in our response to requested floor space. The architect has stated that we 

meet the requirements in general but there would have to be some modifications to the 

building would have to be made. The cost of the modifications was not part of this report. 

I have requested a cost estimate of any modifications to the building as required by the 

RFP. Signed the lease for the next two years. We will invoice them from January for any 

amounts that are due. 

 

Lift Stations- Waiting for a proposal to design the panels and the same for a new lift 

station. We are looking at the possibility of rebuilding the lift station if we need to because 

of funding. Ridgecrest lift station might need a new pump, the cost of which is $58,000. 

The electrical problems are resolved, and we are not discharging the backwash form the 

filters. Meet with the DEC on March 14 to discuss the method we have to use when the 

pipes freeze. 

 

166



 

DEPARTMENTS 

 

YKFC- Helped resolved some problems with finding valves to turn off the water to repair 

leaky showers.  

 

Finance Dept.- We discharge the new Assitant Finance Director. Asked HR Dept. for a 

better background check than what is required in the BMC when filling this position.-Audit 

is underway. Have reviewed depts. budgets when completed. Reviewed lease agreement 

for the ladder truck. A candidate for the assistant finance position has been interviewed me 

the Finance Director, HR and myself and one final interview is scheduled for 3/21/18 

 

Public Works- Wastewater Non –Compliance reports being forwarded to the DEC. Have 

set up a meeting for Jan14 to review our wastewater discharge permit. - On February 3 

the waterlines, the Public Works building is working. The utility maintenance crew 

replaced 480 ft. of water pipe. The cost to contract this work out is estimated to cost 

$1,000,000 per thousand ft. Though this repair took a month to get to considerable 

savings was realized by doing the job ourselves.The electrical contractors arrived 

February 5 to repair the lift station on Ridgecrest. A local contractor worked on the lift 

station and had to leave before the repairs were completed.- RUBA – There was a made 

an error in our score, we have notified them of the discrepancy, and we had not made a 

notification to the state about paying a $25.00 payment to the IRS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

167



 

 
 

Management Team Reports 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



March 20, 2018 

TO:   Pete Williams 

FROM:  Jim Chevigny 

Management report – February, 2018 

 

As you are well aware, this month was a step forward and 2 steps back, as to the Finance Depts’ staffing. 

The positives are we brought on board a new AR accountant to take over Cindy’s position, then elevated 

Cindy to the GL accountant position. Cindy has trained her replacement and now with the budget mod 

having been passed, there are funds available to bring Cindy up to speed. She is doing her best, yet 

there are areas that she will pick up quickly once shown in detail, aspects of the position she will learn. 

The Asst Finance Director did not work out, and I thank you for making the timely decision here. We 

spent less than $300 of the $5,000 in moving expenses for this position.  

I am interviewing another applicant that interestingly is well qualified and will wrap this up this week. 

The finance department will have its first full complement of staff, if this person accepts our offer, for 

the first time since I have been with the city. Even so, there is much training and cross-training to be 

done, as the tenures in each position, as of 3.15.18, are: 1 week, 1.5 months, 1 month, 3 months and 2 

years.  

We are making good progress on the 2019 COB budget, with final meetings completed with each 

department head, yet there is much work to be done before the early April requirement, and I expect 

the budget to be mostly complete and ready for submission. My medical leave this week will impact the 

timing, but we will get it substantially completed.  

The auditors were here as you know, tying up all finance personnel for that week and a half, setting 

some plans back a bit. They completed their initial field work and hopefully, if I can pull the Carmen 

Jackson people in, they can stay on track.  

AR completed their review of the status of all the lodging businesses, tying down their tax returns, 

business licenses, sales tax certificates, insurance submittals, etc, for the first time, possibly ever. We 

now have a system in place to keep track of these and contact them efficiently when needed. The 

results were very positive and we are expanding this work into other areas.  

Utility Billing has brought that department up to a very current status, as to our daily data inputs, which 

allowed us to send out the utility billings not on the 5th, which has been the norm, but on the 2nd, to my 

knowledge, the earliest in anyone’s memory. We have a staff person that has truly taken charge and I 

am working closely with her to expand her tasks, now that she is 3 months into the position and has 

learned it thoroughly.  

169



170



171



172



173



City of Bethel 
Property Maintenance 

Streets and Roads 

Owl Playground Renovation   

Schedule Spring 2018 

Description Dates 
May14 May15 May16 May17  May18 

Cover the driveway from AVCP X     
Adding 30 loads of sand to level 

the playground area. 
 x x   

Removal of the basketball hood 

and swing set.  
x     

Gazebo removal and leveling     x x  
Removal of the picnic tables and 

restoring them with  2”x10”x10’   
 x    

Removal of all the playground 

equipment. 
 x    

Installation of the new 

playground equipment  
   x x 

Adding mulch for the playground 

area. 
    x 

  The playground installation will depend when the new playground 

equipment gets to Bethel. 
 

174



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

175



1 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

Council Meetings and Events 
April 10, 2018 Regular Meeting  

 
Request for Proposal for Courthouse Lease 
The office has spent hours working on the Technical Criteria 1 and 2 in coordination with the City Attorney 
and support from the Grant Manager.  
 
Council Document Preparation 
Resolution Supporting Recover Alaska- will be presented to the Council at a later meeting.  
Ordinance Amending BMC 13.16.150- This was initiated by the Landfill Manager and reworked/amended by 
the office.  
Ordinance Amending Sales Tax Exemption- Documents prepared by the City Attorney but reviewed and 
suggested amendments submitted by the office.  
AM Directing Administration to set up a meeting with AC- This was a collaboration with the Attorney.  
Resolution- AVCP Museum Advisory Committee participation.  

 
Burial Permits March 1-20 
4 Burial Permits have been issued and 1 Reservation.  
The City Clerk’s Office issues burial permits and reservations for the community cemeteries. The time 
required to process and coordinate a burial can range between 20 to 40 minutes total depending on the 
needs of the family.  

 
Passport Applications March 1-20 
21 Application Processed. 
The City Clerk is the only Passport Acceptance Agent in the Region. Each appointment can take between 15 
and 30 minutes depending on how prepared the applicant is.  
 
Bethel Municipal Code Supplement Schedule  
The Office has finalized the 2017 supplement schedule and will be updating the Council’s Code Books once 
the supplements are received by the publishing company. As a reminder, the online code is the most up to 
date. It typically takes between two and three weeks for the online version of the code to reflect any 
updated ordinances. This can at times be extending if the amendments are large or have a later effective 
date.  
 
Elections 
As with previous years, the City’s Regular Election falls concurrent to the AVCP Convention, which means 
the City is unable to utilize the precinct location in the front of the Cultural Center. We have a request in 
with AVCP to see if we would be able to utilize the museum space in the back of the building as we have 
done in previous years.   
 
Otherwise, when time will allow the office is working on updating and organizing the October 2, Election.   

176

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


2/6/2018 

City of Bethel  
Timeline for Review/Action of Liquor License Renewals  

 

Doing Business As License Type Name of Applicant 

Fili’s Pizza License Number 5445 Restaurant Eating Place Mefail Saliu 

Mailing Address Location of Premises Business Telephone Number 

P.O Box 3051 110 Osage Street 907-543-7010 
 

Date Notice Received by City Clerk’s Office  1-17-2018 

Date City Manager Sends Application Notice to Directors 1-17-2018 

Deadline for Department Head Reports (14 days from Notice from City Manager) 1-31-2018 

Date Written Report Sent to City Council from City Manager (20 days from Date Notice received by the 
City Clerk’s Office) 

2-1-2018 

Date of Council Review (30-40 calendar days from Date Notice received by City Clerk) 2-27-2018 

Date of Council’s Regular Meeting Prior to Protest Deadline* 3-13-2018 

Deadline for Protest  3-18-2018 
 

 

Doing Business As License Type Name of Applicant 

*Caribou Traders Liquor Package Store  Caribou Traders Liquor, LLC 

Mailing Address Location of Premises Business Telephone Number 

3351 Arctic Blvd. ANC 99503 750 Front Street 907-751-6800 
 

This is the license transfer from Bethel Spirits.  

Date Notice Received by City Clerk’s Office  3-12-2018 
Date City Manager Sends Application Notice to Directors 3-12-2018 
Deadline for Department Head Reports (14 days from Notice from City Manager) 3-27-2018 
Date Written Report Sent to City Council from City Manager (20 days from Date Notice received by the 

City Clerk’s Office) 
4-2-2018 

Date of Council Review (30-40 calendar days from Date Notice received by City Clerk) 4-24-2018 
Date of Council’s Regular Meeting Prior to Protest Deadline* 5-8-2018 
Deadline for Protest  5-11-2018 

 

The City Clerk’s Office has notice requirements to the applicants if the Council intends to consider a protest of the issuance 
or renewal of liquor licenses. If a council member is interested in protesting the issuance or renewal of any licenses, the 

City Clerk should be notified at least 14 days in advance of the date of the Council’s last meeting before the protest 
deadline to ensure there is time to draft the protest, have it reviewed and sufficient notification provided to the applicant.  

 

177



 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

178



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

179


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session
	New Business AM 18-27 Supporting Docs.1 CSP Grant Support Docs Final.pdf
	AM-CSP Grant Support Docs 1-8
	AM-CSP Support Docs
	Email from Victoria Gibson-DHSS

	Last page




